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Income Statement Highlights

Year Ended
December 31, | December 31,
2007 2006

Net sales $451,382,000 $403,992,000
Cost of sales 267,082,000 236,566,000
Gross profit 184,300,000 167,426,000
selling, general, and administrative expenses 73,037,000 68,746,000
Operating income 111,263,000 98,680,000
Interest expense (9,5562,000) (9,554,000)
Interest income 18,051,000 16,253,000
income before income taxes 119,762,000 105,379,000
Provision for income taxes 42,055,000 35,871,000
Net income $ 77,707,000 | $ 69,508,000
Weighted average common shares outstanding-diluted 34,683,000 34,768,000
Earnings per share-diluted $2.41%0 $2.17

(1) Includes the pre-tox $5.0 million gain, $3.1 million or $0.09 per share on a diluted basis after tax, on the sale
of a component of a reporting segment, ‘




Fellow Shareholders:

2007 was a year of considerable change for

Kaydon Corporation.

We completed a smooth leadership transition to

a new Chief Executive Officer, made several key
appointments within our existing management
team, added considerable strength to that team,
and, finally, added three highly qualified Directors
to an already strong Board of Directors. We also
completed a significant, complementary acquisi-
tion, announced two major capacity expansions, and
divested a smaller, non-strategic component of one
of our reporting segments.

This was accomplished while achieving record
revenues, operating income, and net income and
significantly expanding the Company’s investments
and efforts to focus on its major secular growth
opportunities, internationally and in the wind energy
market. All in all, 2007 was a busy year!

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

In 2007, our sales increased to a record $451.4 mil-
lion, an increase of almost 12 percent from 2006,
reflecting strong end-market demand for our propri-
etary, performance-critical products. Each business
segment reported healthy increases over prior year
as a strong industrial market, further international
penetration and strategic positioning in fast growing
markets such as wind energy served us well, The
strategic acquisition of Avon Bearings Corporation
in late October contributed to the overall increase
and solidifies us as a leader in this secular growth
market. This is discussed in greater detail later.

2007 was an extremely strong year financially for
Kaydon as we achieved record results while making
the significant investments needed to further our
long-term objectives. Operating income increased
to $111.3 million from $98.7 million in 2006 as we
enjoyed a record year in operating profitability

o)

while significant investments we!re made in both our
people and our businesses, Net. income increased to
$77.7 million, or $2.41 per diluted share, from $69.5
million, or $2.17 per diluted shar:e. Our financial
results are discussed in greater detail later, but 2007
represents a foundation year as e are positioning
the Company for significantly enhanced, profitable
growth in 2008 and beyond.

INVESTMENT IN SECUI;.AR
GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

During 2007, we made significant investiments in a
major expansion program to serve the fast growing,
secularly strong wind energy market. During 2007,
we announced two major additions to our previously
announced capital expansion program while com-
pleting a 555 million acquisition that bolsters our
efforts in serving this highly attrzilctive market sector.

The acquisition of Avon on October 26, 2007, repre-
sents an important step in accelérating growth and
creating critical mass in our market-leading bear-
ings business. Avon added immediate capacity to
our growing wind energy platform while broadening
our presence into other key markets for our large
diameter turntable bearings, including the global off-
shore crane, heavy construction; and steel markets,
Avon should add over $30 million in sales to 2008,
strengthening existing relations[fliips and broadening
others in markets that were previously not served
by Kaydon. As Avon is highly complementary to our
existing and expanding manufacturing capabilities,
this acquisition should make Kaydon the largest
manufacturer of large diameter f.}lrntable bearings
in North America. Long term, we plan to leverage
Avon’s reputation as a global leadler in the repair and
remanufacture of large, slewing ring bearings to gain
entry to markets, customers and geographies not

previously fully tapped. |
|
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LEADERSHIP

During the year, Kaydon completed a singoth
transition to a new Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer as I took the reins in March of
2007 from Brian P. Campbell. Since then, we have
made a number of well deserved appointments to
key positions, notably the formal appointment of
Kenneth W. Crawford as Chief Financial Officer,
while adding considerable depth and breadth of
experience in the form of key additions, such as
Debra K. Crane as Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary and Anthony T. Behrman as Vice
President - Human Resources.

In May 2007, Brian P. Campbell retired from Kaydon
Corporation after nearly 9 vears of service as Chair-
man and Chief Executive and over 10 years as a
Director. Brian led Kaydon through an exciting and
challenging period, making important contributions
to Kaydon's operating performance and financial
strength. On behalf of Kaydon and its shareholders,
Pd like to thank Brian for his valuable contributions
over the years. Also retiring this year, after almost
19 years of service including nearly 15 years as Sec-
retary of Kaydon, was John Broccei. John's hard work
and loyalty to Kaydon have contributed much to the
Company's success over the years.

GOVERNANCE

During 2007, we had the opportunity to expand and
strengthen an already world class Board by adding
three highly qualified, independent Directors. In July,
we added two seasoned business leaders to Kaydon’s
Beard in Mark A. Alexander and Patrick P. Coyne. In
October, we added a third, William K. Gerber.

Mark Alexander has served as the Chiel Executive
Officer of Suburban Propane Partners L.P, a pub-
licly traded master limited partnership listed on the
NYSE, since 1996. Prior to assuming the leadership
of Suburban Propane, Mark was Senior Vice Presi-
dent — Corporate Development for Hanson Indus-
tries, the United States division of Hanson plc, a
highly suceessful, highly acquisitive global industrial
conglomerate. Mark’s broad business experience,
coupled with his extensive corporate development
experience, will serve us well as we pursue strategic
opportunities prospectively.

Patrick Coyne is the President of Delaware In-
vestments and Chairman of the Delaware Mutual
Fund Board. Delaware Investments is an affiliate of
Lincoln Financial Group, a diversified asset man-
agement firm with more than $160 billion of assets

under management. Patrick was previously Execu-
tive Vice President and Chief Investment. Officer

for equity investments, after having served as Chiefl
Investment Officer for fixed income investments. His
extensive experience in general management and as
a professional investor makes him an excellent addi-
tion to our Board.

Finally, Bill Gerber joined us from Kelly Services,
Inc., a $5.5 billion Fortune 500 global services com-
pany. Bill served as Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer from 1998 until his retire-
ment. on December 31, 2007. Bill brings a wealth of
financial, transactional and broad business experi-
ence to Kaydon where he has already assumed
responsibility as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Each of these new Directors is well versed in the
role and responsibilities of an independent public
company director and has already begun to make
meaningful contributions to our Board and its
Committees. Going forward, they complement and
supplement an already strong Board that will con-
tinue to serve Kaydon's shareholders well in growing
our business together.

IN CONCLUSION

Looking ahead to 2008 and beyond, Kaydon is

well positioned Lo accelerate profitable growth

and enhance shareholder value. While the current
economic environment is more uncertain than it
has been in many years, we believe we have taken
the right steps to position Kaydon to take maximum
advantage of the secular growth opportunities that
we have focused upon, internationally and in wind
energy. With the team in place, the investments
made, we have the right platform and strategies to
continue our record of success.

1 would like to thank each of our management teams
across Kaydon for their hard work and accomplish-
ments in 2007 and thank them in advance for their
continued efforts into the future. I also appreciate the
continued confidence and support of our customers,
our Board and our shareholders and look forward to
exceeding your expectations well into the future!

o OLeany

James O'Leary
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




Strategy Assessment

Kaydon Corporation has well-defined operating,
financial and growth strategies that guide us in
growing long-term shareholder value. Our operating
strategy 1s focused on identifying and providing
custom engineering and manufacturing solutions
for our customers’ most challenging product
applications, exemplified by the phrase, -
“Kaydon — turning ideas into engineered solutions.”

Kaydon managers across our businesses concentrate
on providing high-quality, value-added solutions to
our customers, blending technical innovation with
cost-effective manufacturing and outstanding ser-
vice. We serve leading global customers, providing
them with customized solutions for technical chal-
lenges. This affords us a premium on our strong and
innovative engineering capabilities and state of the
art manufacturing facilities and techniques.

Our financial strategy is focused on growing operat-
ing earnings with high returns on capital while main-
taining balance sheet flexibility to take full advantage
of attractive growth opportunities while prudently
returning capital to our shareholders.

We look to maximize free cash flow and returns on
capital while prudently managing our balance sheet
to take full advantage of attractive growth opportu-
nities. Kaydon's strong free cash flow and liquidity
enable us to selectively return capital to our share-
holders through opportunistic share repurchases
and periodically increased dividends.

Our growth strategy is centered on using both
internal development and selected acquisitions

to provide custom solutions into elxpanded global
product and market areas. Two recent examples of
successful execution of our growth strategy include
our ongoing investment to significantly expand our
presence in the rapidly growing wind energy market,
and our acquisition of Avon Bearings Corporation.
Kaydon's strategy to expand capacity to produce
large diameter bearings for wind turbine applica-
tions will enable 1s to add increméntal sales to this
market by 2011 of over $150 millién in excess of
those achieved in 2005. In addition, the acquisition
ol Avon, which is expected to add'approximately
$30 million to our 2008 sales and be accretive to
earnings within the first full year Olf ownership,
brings Kaydon additional capabilities in small lot
manufacturing of large diameter bearings and a
strong presence in the refurbishment market.

The disciplined execution of our strategies has
resulted in our current strong financial condition
and attractive returns to our shareholders. We believe
that continued adherence to our strategies will
result in consistent, attractive returns to our share-
holders well into the future.,
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Strong Financial Performance !
Our financial strategy is centered on maXiI:nizing
free cash flow and returns on capital while prudently
managing our balance sheet to take full ad%vantage
of attractive growth opportunities, both inj;ernal

and external.

During the last five years, we have achieved strong
financial performance. 2007 represented an impor-
tant inflection point as we made greater reinvest-
ments in our businesses, both in the form of capital
expenditures, to add needed capacity in growing
sectors, and in our sales and marketing infrastruc-
ture, to better penetrate fast growing international
econemies.

As shown in Chart #1, an important measure of the
strong cash generating capabilities of Kaydon is our
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA). EBITDA, defined by the
Company as cash flow from operations plus or minus
the net change in certain balance sheet accounts,
less net interest income, and plus income tax
expense, is a supplemental, non-GAAP liquidity
measure. The Company’s EBITDA totaled $476.3
million over the last five years, comprised of $308.6
million of cash flow from operations, plus the $29.2
million net change in certain halance sheet accounts,
less $5.0 million of net interest income, plus $138.5
million of income tax expense, and plus the $5.0 mil-
lion gain on the sale of a component of a reporting
segment in 2007. EBITDA is widely used by financial
analysts and investors to assess financial strength,
and is a determinant of Kaydon’s ability to support
our future profit and cash flow growth.

|

Chart #1
EBITDA
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The charts presented in this seci:tion are based on
the continuing operations of Kaydon. In addition,
certain supplemental financial ‘measures provided
are not presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles I( “GAAP”). We be-
lieve that certain non-GAAP data is useful to gain
additional insight into pertinent performance and
liquidity measures of the Comp:any.

1
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Chart #2
EBITDA MARGIN

In Percent
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IEBITDA as a percentage of net sales, referred to
here as EBITDA margin, a non-GAAP measure,

is another important measure of cur strong cash
generating abilities. As shown in Chart #2, we have
consistently generated above average EBITDA mar-
gins during the last five years.

The prudent management of our balance sheet and
capital structure, consistent with our superior cash
llow, is an important financial objective. Kaydon's
strong balance sheet and liquidity provide us with
the financial capacity to fund future growth and
increase shareholder returns. QOur financial Aexibility
allows us to opportunistically pursue both internal
and external growth initiatives.

Chart #3
OPERATING INCOME MARGIN

In Parcent
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During 2007, we made a $54.9 million acquisition of

Avon Bearings Corporation, invested $54.1 million in
net capital expenditures, repurchased $30.1 million

of our common stock, and contributed $26.1 million

to fully fund our qualified pension plans.

We have achieved 20-2b percent operating income
margins in the past because of our proprietary
products, value-added expertise and niche-market
leadership positions. Cur margins are supported

by advanced manufacturing technologies and
aggressive new product development initiatives.

As lllustrated in Chart #3, operating income margins
have averaged 22.1 percent over the tast five years.
We believe continuing long-term moderate economic
expansion, in conjunction with our ongoing cost
reduction and manufacturing efficiency initiatives
and new product introductions, should contribute to
strong long-term profitability levels in future years,
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As illustrated in Chart #4, net income reported by
the Company totaled $293.2 million over the last five
years. Included in net income in 2005 is $27.4 mil-
lion of income {rom discontinued operations.

As shown in Chart #5, our diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations have grown at a com-
pound annual rate of almost 22 percent during the
2003-2007 period. We believe that moderate long-
term econemic growth, disciplined balance sheet
management and execution of our well defined stra-
tegic growth initiatives, should allow us to continue
to grow earnings per share, and therefore, provide
strong shareholder returns.
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Chart #5
Chart #4 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE =~ Chart#6
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Cash generation is an important :element in our abil-
ity to meet our growth targets, representing one of
our most important strategic ﬁnz:mcial objectives. In
evaluating both overall corporate performance and
the individual performance of our Kaydon husiness
units, we use several cash flow standards to mea-
sure our capacity to finance future growth. We have
historically generated signiﬁcantf cash flow from
operations as Chart #6 illustrates. Cash flow from
operations totaled $308.6 mi]]jonl over the last five
years. Because of strategic capital investment initia-
tives implemented during the las:t five years, Kaydon
has enjoyed competitive advantages based on cost
effective, advanced manufacturing technologies and
productive capacity, which provide considerable
flexibility in servicing increased bustomer demands.




2007 KAYDON ANNUAL REPORT

[During the last five years, as Chart #7 illustrates, our
strong cash flow from operations has also resulted

in strong free cash flow, a supplemental, non-GAAP
liquidity measure, defined as cash flow from opera-
tions less capital expenditures, of $193.9 million, We
believe that free cash flow is an important indicator
of the Company’s ability to generate excess cash
above levels required for capital investment to sup-
port future growth.

Strong operating cash flow has enabled Kaydon to
fund internally $114.7 million in capital expenditures
over the past five years, as shown in Chart #8. In
2007, capital expenditures included $29.1 million
related to our additional investment to increase
capacity to serve the rapidly growing wind energy
rnarket. During 2008, we expect to invest an
additional approximately $70-$75 million in net
capital expenditures. We believe that these invest-
ments will support meaningful increases in long-
term sharehclder value in the years ahead.

Our cash Aow during the last five years has also
allowed us to repurchase $93.9 million of our
common stock, pay shareholders $69.0 million of
dividends and provide increasing resources to sup-
port ongoing new product development, employee
training programs, manufacturing efficiencies and
enhanced market share initiatives.

Looking forward to 2008 and beyond, we believe
that our proprietary product and market leadership
positions, manufacturing efficiency initiatives, new
product development programs and strategic capital
investmenis position us well to continue to generate
strong cash flow and increase shareholder value.

Chart #7
FREE CASH FLOW
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Corporate Leadership

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
James O'Leary

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Qfficer
Kaydon Corporation

Mark A. Alexander
Chief Executive Officer
Suburban Propane Partners L.P. )%

David A. Brandon
Chavrman and Chief Executive Officer
Domino’s Pizza, Inc.™®

Patrick P. Coyne
President
Delaware nvestments (V)

William K. Gerber
Managing Director
Cabrillo Point Capital, LLC (9

Timothy J. O’Donovan

Chairman
Wolverine World Wide, Inc. (V%

Thomas C. Sullivan
Chairman
RPM International Inc, 23

(1) Audit Commitiee Member

(2) Compensation Commitiee Member

(3) Corporate Governance and Nominating
Commitiee Member
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CORPORATE OFFICERS
AND EXECUTIVES
James O'Leary

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive QOfficer

Kenneth W, Crawford
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate Controller

Peter C. DeChants

Senior Vice President—

Corporate Development and Strategy,
and Treasurer

John R. Emling
Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Anthony T. Behrman
Vice President—Human Resources

Debra K. Crane
Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary

John A. Madison

Vice President—Information Technology

and Operations Planning

David V. Raguckas
Vice President—IMmternal Audit

Dale E. Ulman
Vice President—Taxes

David M. McNulty
Assistant Treasurer

M. Richard Mosteller
Assistant Corporate Controller

OPERATING MANAGEMENT

William J. Chorkey
President, ACE Controls, Inc.

Stephen A. Gates
Managing Director;
Cooper Roller Bearing Group

Charles F. Holmes
President, Tridan International, Inc.
and Indiana Precision, Inc.

L. Jeffrey Manzagol
President, Kaydon Bearings Division

James W, Mash
President, Purafil, Inc.

Robert P. McIntire
President, Canfield Technologies, Inc.

Michael R. Purchase
General Manager, Industrial Tectonics Inc.

Arthur H. Ridler
President, Kaydon Ring and Seal, Inc.

Peter C. Scovic
President, Kaydon Custom Filtration
Corporation




Stock Performance Graph

The following line-graph compares cumulative, five-year
shareholder returns on Kaydon Corporation common stock
with a broad equity market index and a nationally recognized
industry standard. Kaydon has selected Standard & Poor’s 500
Stock Composite (“S&P 500”) Index for the broad equity
index and the Value Line Diversified Manufacturing Index as
an industry standard for the five-year period commencing
January 1, 2003 and ending on December 31, 2007.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* !

$350
M Kaydon Corporation Common Stock
$300 —{ @ Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock Composite Index
B Value Line Diversified Manufacturing Index
$250
$200
$150
$100
$50
2002 2003 2004 2005 20086 2007
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Kaydan Corporation $100.00 $124.53 $161.76 $160.03 $200.41 $278.17
Standard & FPoor’s 500 $100.00 $128.69 $142.69 $149.70 $173.34 $182.86
Diversified Manufacturing $100.00 $155.24 $196.05 $208.65' $261.65 $301.34

*  Assumes $100 invested at the close of trading on December 31, 2002 in Kaydon c;ommon stock, the S&J
500 Stock Composite Index and the Value Line Diversified Manufacturing Index {published by Value Line,
Ine.). Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-locking state-
ments within the meaning of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 regarding the Company’s plans, expecta-
tions, estimates and beliefs. Forward-looking state-
ments are typically identified by words such as
“believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “will,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “poten-
tial,” “projects,” “approximately” and other similar
expressions, including statements regarding pending
litigation, general economic conditions, competitive
dynamics and the adequacy of capital resources.
These forward-looking statements may include,
among other things, projections of the Company’s
financial performance, anticipated growth, character-
ization of and the Company’s ability to control con-
tingent liabilities, and anticipated trends in the
Company's businesses. These statements are only
predictions, based on the Company’s current expecta-
tion about future events. Although the Company
believes the expectations reflected in the forward-
looking statements are reasonable, it cannot guaran-
tee future results, performance or achievements or
that predictions or current expectations will be accu-
rate. These forward-looking statements involve

risks and uncertainties that could cause the Compa-
ny’s actual results, performance dr achievements to
differ materially from those expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements.

In addition, the Company or persons acting on
its behalf may from time to time publish or commu-
nicate other items that could also'be construed to be
forward-looking statements. Statéments of this sort
are or will be based on the Company’s estimates,
assumptions, and projections and are subject to risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those mcluded in the forward-
looking statements. Kaydon does not undertake any
responsibility to update its forward-looking state-
ments or risk factors to reflect fuiure events or
circumstances except to the extent required by appli-
cable law. For a specific discussion of the risks and
uncertainties that could affect the Company’s finan-
cial condition and/or operating results, please refer
to Item 1A. Risk Factors herein. '




PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General Development of Business

Kaydon Corporation (the “Company” or “Kay-
don™} is a leading designer and manufacturer of
custom-engineered, performance-critical products for
a broad customer base. Kaydon was incorporated
under the laws of Delaware in 1983 as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bairnco Corporation, its former
parent company. The Company became a separate
public company in 1984 when it was spun-out of
Bairnco Corporation as a dividend to Bairnco’s share-
holders. At the time of its incorporation, Kaydon was
principally involved in the design and manufacture of
bearings and components, as well as filters and filter
housings. Since 1984, the Company has pursued a
diversified growth strategy in the manufacturing sec-
tor. The Company’s principal products now include
the previously mentioned bearings and components
and filters and filter housings, and also custom rings,
shaft seals, linear deceleration products, specialty
balls, fuel eleansing systems, gas-phase air filtration
systems and replacement media, industrial presses
and metal alley products. These products are used by
customers in a variety of robotics, medical, material
handling, machine tocl positioning, aerospace,
defense, alternative-energy, security, electronic and
other industrial applications. The Company performs
as an extension of its customers’ engineering and
manufaeturing funetions, with a commitment to iden-
tify and provide engineered solutions to design prob-
lems through technical innovation, cost-effective
manufacturing and outstanding value-added service.

The Company has grown both organically
through strategic investments in its business and
through aequisitions. In 2007, the Company acquired
all of the outstanding stock of Avon Bearings Corpo-
ration (“Aven”) in a cash transaction valued at
$54.9 million. Avon is a custom designer and manu-
facturer of high precision large diameter turntable
bearings. Avon also remanufactures bearings and
sells replacement bearings.

Industry Segments

We operate through operating segments for
which separate financial information is available, and
for which operating results are evaluated regularly
by the Company’s chief operating decision maker in
determining resource allocation and assessing perfor-
mance. Certain of the operating segments have simi-
lar economic characteristics, as well as other common
attributes, including nature of the products and pro-
duetion processes, distribution patterns and classes of
customers. The Company aggregates these operating
segments for reporting purposes. Certain other oper-
ating segments do not exhibit the common attributes
mentioned above and, therefore, information about
them is reported separately. Still other operating
segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for
separate disclosure and their information is combined
and disclosed as “Other.”

The Company has three reportable segments
and other operating segments engaged in the manu-
facture and sale of the following:

Friction Control Products — complex compo-
nents used in specialized robotics, medical, aerospace,
defense, security, eleetronic, material handling, con-
struction, alternative-energy, and other industrial
applications. Products include anti-friction bearings,
split roller bearings, and specialty balls.

Velocity Control Produets — complex compo-
nents used in spectalized robotics, matertal handling,
machine tool, medical, amusement and other indus-
trial applications. Products include industrial shock
absorbers, safety shock absorbers, velocity controls,
gas springs and rotary dampers.

Sealing Products - complex and standard ring
and seal preducts used in demanding industrial, aero-
space and defense applications. Produets include
engine rings, sealing rings and shaft seals.

Other - filter elements and liquid and gas-phase
filtration systems, metal alloys, machine tool compo-
nents, presses, dies and benders used in a variety of
industrial applications.
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Net sales related to our three reportable seg-
ments and other operating segments during 2007,
2006 and 2005 are set forth in the following table:

2007 2006

(In thousands)

2005

Friction Control Products
External customers
Intersegment - continuing

$261,447 $233,843 $194,566

operations 205 187 126

Intersegment - discontinued
operations — — 302
261,652 234,030 194,994

Velocity Control Products

External customers 63,912 56,733 53,839
Intersegment — continuing
operations — — {1}
63,912 56,733 53,838
Sealing Products
External customers 46,831 42 085 38,632
Intersegment - continuing
operations (144) (89) (88)
46,687 41,996 38,544
Other
External customers 79,192 71,331 67,219
Intersegment - continuing
operations (61) {98) (37)
79,131 71,233 67,182

Total consolidated net sales $451,382 $403,992 $354,558

See the Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments (Note 11) contained in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data for additional
information on the Company’s reportable segments.

Sophisticated technology plays a significant role
in all of our reportable segments in the design,
engineering and manufacturing of our products. Due
to the ecustom-engineered, proprietary nature of the
Company’s products, substantially ali of the manu-
facturing is done in-house and subcontractors are
utilized for occasional specialized services. Produects
are manufactured utilizing a variety of precision
metalworking and other process technologies after
working closely with customers to engineer the
required solution to their design and performance
challenges.

We sell our products in each reportable segment
through a sales organization consisting of salesper-
sons and representatives located primarily throughout
North America, Europe and Asia. Salespersons are
trained to provide technical assistance to customers,
as well as to serve as a liaison between the factory
engineering staffs of Kaydon and its customers. Also,
a global network of specialized distributors and
agents provides local availability of our products to
serve the requirements of customers, During 2007,
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2006 and 2005, sales to no single customer exceeded
10 percent of Kaydon net sales. However, during
2007, sales to one customer exceeded 10 percent
{12.8 percent) of net sales in the Friction Control
Produets reporting segment, sales to two customers
exceeded 10 percent (23.4 percent, and 11.2 percent}
of net sales in the Sealing Products reporting seg-
ment, and sales to one customer exceeded 10 percent
(15.0 percent) of net sales in the other businesses.
During 2006, sales to two customers exceeded 10 per-
cent (23.6 percent, and 12.6 percent) of net sales in
the Sealing Products reporting segiment, and sales to
one customer exceeded 10 percent'(14.2 percent) of
net sales in the other businesses. During 2005, sales
to two customers exceeded 10 percent (23.1 percent,
and 13.8 percent) of net sales in the Sealing Prod-
ucts reporting segment, and sales {o one customer
exceeded 10 percent (11.2 percent) of net sales in
the other businesses.

We do not consider our businéss in any report-
able segment to be seasonal in nat!ure or to have
special working capital requirements. Compliance
with federal, state and local regulatlons relating to
the discharge of materials into the! .environment, or

otherwise relating to the protectmq of the environ-
ment, is not expeected to result in material capital
expenditures by us or to have a m:l_Lterial adverse
effect on our earnings or competitive position. In
general, raw materials required by!the Company are
attainable from various sources and in the quantities
desired. Various provisions of fede1 al law and regula-
tions require, under certain c1rcumstances the rene-
gotiations of military procurement 'contracts or the
refund of profits determined to be excessive. The
Company, based on experience, believes that no
material renegotiations or refunds will be required. In
2007, we publicly announced the intention to invest
an additional $48.0 million to expa:nd our capacity
and to maintain our leadership position in the supply
of specialty bearings to serve the rapidly growing
wind energy market. Other than this announcement,
we have not made any public announcement of, or
otherwise made public informationiabout, a new
product or a new industry segment which would
require the investment of a materiz:ll amount of our
assets or which would otherwise result in a material

cost.
|

Backlog .

We sell certain products on a bulld to-order basis
that requires substantial order lead- tlme This results in
a backlog of unshipped, scheduled orders In addition,
certain products are manufactured on the basis of sales
projections or annual blanket purchasie orders.




Variability in backlog s affected by the timing
of orders received, particularly when larger eustomers
pull forward or push out major orders. Backlog in the
Friction Control Products reporting segment was
$191.2 million at December 31, 2007, including a
recent acquisition, and was $110.3 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2006. Backlog in the Veloeity Control Prod-
ucts reporting segment was $8.3 million at
December 31, 2007 and $5.7 million at December 31,
20106. Backlog in the Sealing Products reporting
segment was $27.8 million at December 31, 2007
and $24.6 million at December 31, 2006. Backlog in
other businesses was $11.6 million at December 31,
2007, and $10.9 million at December 31, 2006,

Patents and Trademarks

The Company holds various patents, patent
applications, licenses, trademarks and trade names.
The Company considers its patents, patent applica-
tions, licenses, trademarks and trade names to be
valuable, but does not believe that there is any
reasonable likelihood of a loss of such rights which
would have a material adverse effect on our present
business as a whole.

Competition

The major domestic and foreign markets for our
products in all reporting segments are highly compet-
itive. Competition is based primarily on price, product
engineering and performance, technology, quality and
overall customer service, with the relative importance
of such factors varying by degree among products.
Our competitors include a large number of other
well-established diversified manufacturers, as well as
other smaller companies. Although a number of com-
panies of varying size compete with us, no single
competitor is in substantial competition with the
Company with respect to more than a few of its
product lines and services.

Employees

We employ approximately 2,125 people. Satis-
factory relationships have generally prevailed
between the Company and its employees.

International Operations

Certain friction control products are manufac-
tured in Mexico and the United Kingdom, and certain
veloeity control products are assembled and distrib-
uted through a faeility in Gertany. In addition,
within all reporting segments, we distribute an array
of produets principally throughout North America,
Europe and Asia. Our foreign operations are subject

to political, monetary, economic and other risks
attendant generally to international businesses. These
risks generally vary from country to country.

See the Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
menls (Nofe 11) contained in Item 8. Finaneial
Statements and Supplementary Data for additional
information on the Company’s operations by geo-
graphic area.

Available Information

Qur internet address is www kaydon.com. Qur
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form §-K, proxy
statements and amendments to all such reports and
statements are accessible at no charge on our website
as soon as reasonably practicable after filing with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Also accessible
on our website under “Corporate Governance” are
our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Codes of
Ethics, and the charters of the various committees of
our Board of Directors. These items are also available
in print at no charge to those who direct a request in
writing to the Company.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors could affect the Com-
pany’s finangial condition and/or operating results.

The Compuny’s customers’ economic cycles may
affect Kaydon's operating results.

Many of our customers are in industries that are
cyclical in nature and sensitive to changes in general
economic conditions and other factors, including cap-
ital spending levels. Such industries include commer-
cial aerospace, specialty electronics manufacturing
equipment, power generation, off-road and heavy
industrial equipment, and other eapital equipment
manufacturing. As a result, the demand for our
products by these customers depends, in part, upon
general economic conditions. Historically, downward
economic cycles have reduced customer demand for
our products, thereby reducing sales of our products
and resulting in reductions o our revenues and net
earnings. In addition, our military sales are depen-
dent on government funding.

Increased. competition in the Company’s key markets
could result in a reduction in Kaydon's revenues
and earnings and adversely affect the Company’s
financial condition.

The industries in which we operate are frag-
mented and we face competition from multiple com-
panies across our various product lines. We expect
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competitive pressures from new products and aggres-
sive pricing to increase, which may cause us to lose
market share or compel us to reduce prices to remain
competitive, which could result in reduced levels of
revenues and earnings. Our competitors include

U.S. and non-U.S. companies, some of which benefit
from lower labor costs and fewer regulatory burdens.
In addition, certain competitors, including Eaton,
Timken, SKF, and INA/FAG, are larger than Kaydon
and may have access to greater finaneial, technical,
development, marketing, manufacturing, sales and
distribution services and other resources. Increased
competition with these companies or new entrants to
our key markets could prevent price increases for our
products or could require price reductions for our
products, which could adversely affect our financial
condition, results of operations, growth or liquidity.

Future acquisitions may requive Kaydon to tneur
costs and liabilities which may adversely affect the
Company's operating results.

In addition to internal growth, our current strat-
egy involves growth through acquisitions of comple-
mentary businesses as well as acquisitions that would
diversify our product offerings. Like other companies
with similar growth strategies, we may be unable to
continue to implement our growth strategy, and this
strategy may be ultimately unsuccessful. A portion of
our expected future growth in revenues may result
from acquisitions. We frequently engage in evalua-
tions of potential acquisitions and negotiations for
possible acquisitions, certain of which, if consum-
mated, could be significant to the Company.
Although it is our policy only to acquire companies in
transactions which are accretive to both earnings and
cash flow, any potential acquisitions may result in
material transaction expenses, increased interest and
amortization expense, increased depreciation expense
and increased operating expense, any of which couid
have a material adverse effect on our operating
results. Acquisitions may entail integration and man-
agement of the new businesses to realize economies
of scale and control costs. In addition, acquisitions
may involve other risks, including diversion of man-
agement resources otherwise available for ongoing
development of our business and risks associated
with entering new markets. We may not be able to
identify suitable acquisition candidates in the future,
obtain acceptable financing or consummate any
future acquisitions, Finally, as a result of our acquisi-
tions of other businesses, we may be subject to the
risk of unanticipated business uncertainties or legal
liabilities relating to those acquired businesses for
which the sellers of the acquired businesses may not
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indemnify the Company. Future acquisitions may also
result in potentially dilutive issuances of securities.

Political, economic and regulatory conditions inher-
ent in the international markets in which Kaydon
participates could adversely affect the Company’s
[financial condition.

Typically, sales of our products from our foreign
subsidiaries and from our domesti¢ subsidiaries sell-
ing to foreign locations account for approximately
30-35 percent of net sales. These foreign sales couid
be adversely affected by changes in various foreign
countries’ political and economic conditions, trade
protection measures, differing intellectual property
rights and changes in regulatory requirements that
restrict the sales of our products ot increase our
costs. ’ |

We generate significant reven?ues outside the
United States. Currency fluctuations between the
U.8. dollar and the currencies in which those custom-
ers do business may have an impact on the demand
for our products in foreign countries where the
U.S. dollar has increased in value compared to the
local currency. We cannot predict the effects of
exchange rate fluctuations upon our future operating
results because of the number of currencies involved,
the variability of currency exposure and the potential
volatility of currency exchange rates.

Relationships with customers and effective terms
of sale frequently vary by country, often with longer-
term receivables than are typical in the United
States.

Kaydon's critical performance products expose the
Company to potential litigation-related costs which
may adversely affect the Company’s financial posi-
tion and operating resulis. :

As a provider of critical performance products in
a variety of industries including ae!rospace, defense,
robotics, medical, material handling, machine tool
positioning, alternative-energy and other industrial
applications, we face a risk of exposure to claims in
the event that the failure, use or misuse of our
products results, or is alleged to result, in bodily
injury and/or property damage.

In the past, costs related to legal proceedings
and settlements have had a material effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations
and liquidity. We cannot assure yOL:l that the ultimate
cost of current known or future unknown litigation
and claims will not exceed management’'s current
expectations and it is possible that such costs eould




have a material adverse effect on the Company. In
addition, litigation is time consuming and could divert
management attention and resources away from our
business,

Kaydon's capucity expansion to supply custom
bearings to a select group of global customers

in the wind energy market may adversely affect the
Company's financial position and operating results.

Through 2007, we have committed to spend
approximately $80 million to expand our capacity to
supply custom bearings to the wind energy market.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

By 2009, we expect to supply well in excess of

$100 million of specialty large-diameter bearings to a
select group of financially strong, global wind turbine
manufacturers. We face a risk of exposure to sales
and earnings volatility if this rapidly growing indus-
try attracts new competition, loses certain govern-
mental ineentives, or matures more rapidly than
currently anticipated.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

The following list sets forth the location of our principal manufacturing facilities for each reportable

segment:
Reportable Segment Location
Friction Control Products Avon, Ohio

Velocity Control Products

Sealing Products

Other

Dexter, Michigan

Mocksville, North Carolina
Muskegon, Michigan

Sumter, South Carolina (2 sites)
King's Lynn, United Kingdom
Monterrey, Mexico (2 sites)

Farmington Hills, Michigan
Langenfeld, Germany

Baltimore, Maryland
Mocksville, North Carolina

Crawfordsville, Indiana
Danville, Ilinois

Doraville, Georgia
LaGrange, Georgia (2 sites)
Sayreville, New Jersey

The Company considers that its properties are
generally in good condition, are well maintained, and
are generally suitable and adequate to carry on the
Company’s business. Exeept for leased faeilities in
Monterrey, Mexico (2 sites), Langenfeld, Germany,
and LaGrange, Georgia (1 site), substantially all of
the properties are owned by the Company. None of
the Company’s properties are subject to significant
encumbrances. The Company’s manufacturing facili-
ties currently have sufficient capacity or are being
expanded to meet increased customer demand. The
Company’s leased executive offices are located in
Ann Arbor, Michigan,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Various claims, arising in the normal course of
business are pending against the Company. The
Company’s estimated legal costs expected to be
incurred in connection with claims, lawsuits and envi-
ronmental matters are accrued in the consolidated
financial statements contained in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF
SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security
holders during the fourth quarter of the year ended
December 31, 2007.
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SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

(Pursuant to Instruction 3 to Ifem 401(b) of Regulation §-K)
The following are the executive officers of Kaydon Corporation as of December 31, 2007, except for Mr. Behrman
and Ms. Crane who became executive officers on February 14, 2008.

Name and Age of
Executive Officer

Data Pertaining to
Executive Officers

James O’Leary (45)

Anthony T. Behrman (44)

Debra K. Crane (52)

Kenneth W. Crawford {50)

Peter C. DeChants (55)

John R. Emling (51)

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. O'Leary joined Kaydon in March
2007 as President and Chief Executive Officer. He was elected Chairman of the Board in May
2007. Prior to joining Kaydon, he was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Beazer Homes, USA, Inc. since Aupust 2003, having joined Beazer Homes in June 2002.

Mr. O’Leary was previously with U.S. Industries, Ine. from 1995 until 200:2. He has been a Director
of Kaydon since March 2005.

Vice President - Human Resources. Mr. Behrman joined Kaydon in December 2007. Prior to joining
Kaydon, he held a variety of human resources positions at companies including BorgWarner, which
he joined in 2001, Thomson Consumer Electronies, GTE, and General Dynamics.

Viee President, General Counsel and Secretary. Ms. Crane joined Kaydon i{l January 2008, Prior to
joining Kaydon, she was Senior Counsel for Parker-Hannifin Corporation from 2006 to 2007. From
2003 to 2006, Ms. Crane was with Novelis Corporation.

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Controller and Assistant Secretary.

Mr. Crawford was promoted te his current position in May 2007. Prior to his promotion,

Mr. Crawford was Vice President and Corporate Controlier since joining Kaydon in 1999. He was
elected Assistant Secretary in February 2000. Prior to joining Kaydon, he was Director of Financial
Analysis at MascoTech, Inc., and Assistant Controller for TriMas Corporation.

Senior Viee President - Corporate Development and Strategy, and Treasurer. Mr. DeChants was
promoted to his current position in May 2007, Prior to his promotion, Mr. DeChants was Vice
President - Corporate Development and Treasurer since joining Kaydon in September 2002. Prior to
joining Kaydon, he was the Vice President of Corporate Development and Strategic Planning of
Metaldyne Corporation and its predecessor MascoTech, Inc., and Vice President and Treasurer of
TriMas Corporation.

Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr, Emling was promoted to his current position
in May 2007. Prior to his promotion, Mr. Emling was Senior Vice President of Operations since
April 2000. He joined Kaydon in September 1998 as President - Specialty Bearings Products Group.
Prior to joining Kaydon, he was Vice President and General Manager of Barden Corporation.

Executive officers, who are elected by the Board of Directors, serve for a term of one i/ear.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S
COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Dividends

The New York Stock Exchange is the prineipal
market on which our commen stock is traded under

the symbol KDN. As of December 31, 2007, there
were 735 holders of record of our common stock.

The following table sets forth high and low
closing sales prices of our common stock as reported
on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape
and the cash dividends declared per share for the
periods indicated.

2007 by Quarter 2006 by Quarter
Market Price  Market Price  Dividends Market Price  Market Price  Dividends
High Low Declared High Low Declared
Tourth $55.68 $47.79 30.15 $42.46 $35.99 $0.12
“hird 57.14 48.94 0.15 38.82 33.47 0.12
Second 53.07 42.42 0.12 43.85 34.93 0.12
Tirst 45.56 39.65 0.12 40.36 32.00 0.12

We expect that our practice of paying quarterly
dividends on our common stock will continue,
ilthough future dividends will continue to depend
upon the Company’s earnings, capital requirements,

The following table provides the information

with respect to purchases made by the Company of

shares of its common stock during each month in the
fourth quarter of 2007.

financial condition and other factors.

Total Number of Maximum Number of
Total Number Average Price  Shares Purchased as Shares that May

of Shares Paid Part of Publicly Yet be Purchased

Period Purchased Per Share Announced Plan Under the Plan'"?
September 30 to October 27 — — — 4,428,171
October 28 to November 24 108,500 $51.56 108,500 4,319,671
Hovember 25 to December 31 38,500 $48.97 38,500 4,281,171
Total 147,000 $50.88 147,000 4,281,171

1} In May 2005, the Company's Board of Directors authorized management to repurchase up to 5,000,000 shares of its common stock in
the open market.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information December 31, 2007, including the 1999 Long Term

The following table gives information about our
common stock that may be issued upon the exercise
of options, warrants and rights under all of our
existing equity compensation plans as of

Compensation Plan.

Stock Incentive Plan, the 2003 Non-Employee
Directors Equity Plan and the Director Deferred

(C)

Number of securities

(A) ! remaining available
Number of securities (B) ! for future issuance
to be issued upon Weighted-average' under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding outstanding options, (excluding securities
options, warrants and warrants and reflected
rights rights in column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders 346,500 $40.64 3,038,344
|
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders'® 12,338 N/A ' N/A
Total 358,838 ‘ 8,038,344

(1) Includes only options outstanding under Kayden’s 1999 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan and the 2003 Non-Employee Directors Equity

Plan, as no warrants or rights were outstanding as of December 31, 2007.

{2) Includes shares of Kaydon common stock pursuant to phantom stock units outstanding under Kaydon's Dire:ctor Deferred Compensa-
tion Plan. This Plan is the only equity plan that has not been approved by shareholders and provides a vehielle for a Director to defer
compensation and acquire Kaydon common stock. The amount shown in ecolumn (A) above assumes these Directors elect to receive
their deferred compensation in shares of Kaydon common stock, The number of shares reserved for issuance under this Plan is not

limited in amount, other than by the doliar value of the non-employee Directors’ annual compensation.

{3) Includes shares available for issuance under Kaydon's 1999 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan which allows for the granting of stock
options, stock appreciation rights and for awards of restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock-based performance awards to
employees of and consultants to the Company, and shares available for issuance under the 2003 Non-Employee Directors Equity Plan

which allows for the granting of stock options and for awards of restricted stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Income Statement
Net Sales
Gross Profit
Income From Continuing Operations
Income From Discontinwed Operations
et Income
Balance Sheet
Total Assets - Continuing Operations
'Total Assets - Discontinued Operations
>ash and Cash Equivalents, and Short-term Investments
‘Total Debt
Cash Flow Data
Net Cash From Operating Activities
Japital Expenditures, net
Depreciation and Amortization of Intangible Assets
Per Share Data
Earnings per Share From Continuing QOperations - Diluted
Earnings per Share From Discontinued Operations - Diluted
Earnings per Share - Diluted
Dividends Declared per Share

(In thousands, except per share data)

$451,382  $403,992  $354,558  $296,731  $258,466
184,300 167,426 139,030 121,158 97,8693
71,7071 69,508 46,530 96,346 32,053
- — 27,359 2012 1,699
$ 77,707V $ 69,508 § 78,889  § 38,358 ¢ 33,7620

$786,565 $737,556  $670,587 $581,628  $552,802
— — — 87,496 37,572
286,093 370,789 320,804 278,586 255,756
200,000 200,000 200,066 200,128 200,218

$ 74,259 $ 89,860 $ 41,284 $ 48,161 $ 55,053
54,073 26,294 12,560 11,141 10,605

15,002 14,312 13,831 11,199 11,132

$ 201'V¢ 217 $ 152 $ 122 $ 109

— — 0.791® 0.06 0.05
24110 2.17 2.301% 1.27 114
0.54 0.43 0.43 0.48 0.48

(1) Includes the after tax effect, $3.1 million or $0.09 per share, of the pre-tax $5.0 million gain on the sale of a component of the

Friction Contro! Products reporting segment.

(2) Includes the after tax effect, $25.4 million or $0.73 per share, of the net gain on the sale of the Power and Data Transmission

Products Group.

(3) Includes a $3.8 million favorable impact related to a legal settlement.

(4) Ineludes the after tax effect, $2.5 million or $0.08 per share, of the pre-tax $3.8 million favorable legal settlement, a pre-tax
$0.9 million gain on the sale of a building, and the pre-tax $0.8 million negative effect of restructuring charges.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We provide proprietary, value-added products to
a diverse customer base covering a broad spectrum of
industries. This strategic customer diversification
means that demand for our products depends, in part,
upon certain general economie conditions, which
affect our markets in varying ways from year to
year. Similar to 2005 and 2006, during 2007 the
Company continued to benefit from a strong manu-
facturing economy. As a result, the Company experi-
enced strong demand for its specialty products from
various key markets including wind energy, machin-
ery, aerospace, defense, and petrochemical process-
ing, which resulted in record annual sales of
$451.4 million. Benefiting from the record sales, the
Company generated net income of $77.7 million, and
cash flow from operations of $74.3 million during
2007. Despite our strong cash flow from operations,
cash and eash equivalents, and short-term invest-
ments deereased $83.8 million during the year as the
Company invested $54.1 million in net capital expen-
ditures, $54.9 million on an acquisition, $30.1 million
for stock repurchases, $26.1 million to fully fund its
qualified pension plans, and inereased its common
stock dividend. The total order book for 2007 equaled
$505.5 million, compared to $405.3 million in 2006,
and $398.3 million in 2005. Our record 2007 year-
end backlog of $238.9 million provides a firm foun-
dation for operating performance in 2008, particu-
larly in the latter half.

In 2007, the Company acquired all of the out-
standing stock of Avon Bearings Corporation
{*“Avon”) in a cash transaction valued at $54.9 mil-
lion. Avon is a custom designer and manufacturer of
high precision large diameter turntable bearings.
Avon also remanufactures bearings and sells replace-
ment bearings.

The Company continues to focus on programs
intended to reduce costs, improve capacity utilization,
increase efficiencies, and grow market share and
cash flow, thereby positioning the Company to capi-
talize on future opportunities in targeted markets,
especially during a period of sustained economic
growth. During 2007, the Company announced two
additional phases to increase its eapacity to provide
performance-critical specialty bearings to serve the
rapidly growing wind energy market. The Company
also made substantial progress on the relocation of a
portion of the manufacturing of its Sealing Products
segment from a higher cost facility in Baltimore,
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Maryland to a lower cost facility in Mocksville, North
Carolina. We believe that these initiatives will be
important growth drivers for both North American
and international sales in the years ahead. In addi-
tion, the Company continued its Lean Sigma effort
and its investments in lean manufacturing and infor-
mation systems to strengthen the Company’s opera-
tional excellence.

The Company's 2007 effective tax rate was
35.1 percent as compared to the 2008 effective tax
rate of 34.0 percent which reflected in 2006 redue-
tions to the tax provision totaling $1.7 million related
to deductions recognized for financial reporting
purposes, after examinations by certain taxing
authorities, or after the expiration of applicable
review periods. Absent any siniilar items, we cur-
rently expect the effective tax rate for 2008 to be
approximately 36.0 percent.

Maintaining the Company’s strong balance sheet
and financial flexibility remains a key strategy of the
Company. The Company’s current cash and short-
term investment balances, its $300.0 million revolv-
ing credit facility, and other available financial
resources enhance liquidity and provide additional
financial strength to support the Company’s objec-
tives, including strategic acquisiitions.

As disclosed in Item 8 of this Annual Report,
the Company has concluded that its system of inter-
nal control over financial reporting was effective as
of December 31, 2007. Our independent registered
publie accounting firm’s report on internal control
over financial reporting is also included in Item 8
under the heading “Report of Independent Registered
Public Acecounting Firm - Internal Control.”

In sumnmary, in the future the Company expects
to benefit from a favorable manufacturing economy
and resultant capital spending levels, the growth of
key markets such as the wind energy and medical
equipment industries, and the utilization of current
liquidity levels in completing both internal growth
initiatives and strategic acquisitions, However,
because many of these factors are external to the
Company, it is difficult to predict the specific impact
they may have on the Company’s future operating
results.

The discussion which follows should be reviewed
in conjunction with the consolidated financial state-
ments and the related Notes to consolidated finanecial
statements contained in Item 8§ of this Annual Report
to assist in understanding the Company’s resuits of
operations, its financial condition, eash flows, capital
structure and other relevant financial information.



Analysis of 2007 Operations Compared to
2026 Operations

Selected Data For The Year 2007 Compared With
The Year 2006

Fer the Years Ended
December 31,

2007 2006

(In thousands, except
per share amounis)

Results from operations:

Net sales $451,382  $403,992
Gress profit $184,300 $167,426
Gruss profit margin 40.8% 41.4%

Sel.ing, general and
administrative expenses
Operating income

$ 73,037 § 68,746
$111,263  § 98,680

Operating margin 24.6% 24.4%

$ (9,552) $ (9,554)
Interest income $ 18051 $ 16,253
Nel income $ 77,707  $ 69,508
Earnings per share - diluted $ 241 % 217

Interest expense

Record net sales of $451.4 million in 2007
increased $47.4 million or 11.7 percent compared to
2006’s net sales of $404.0 million. Specifically, the
Friction Control Products reporting segment achieved
sales of $261.7 million during 2007, up $27.6 million
or 11.8 percent compared to 2006 sales of $284.0 mil-
liox. The increase is principally the result of increased
sales of custom-engineered bearings to the wind
enorgy market of $11.7 million, the machinery mar-
kei of $7.4 million, the $4.3 million of sales from
recently acquired Avon Bearings Corporation, and
higher sales of split roller bearings, which increased
$10.7 million. Sales to the specialty electronics mar-
ket declined $5.7 million compared to the prior year.
Our Velocity Contro! Products reporting segment
achieved sales of $63.9 million during 2007, up
$7.2 million, or 12.7 percent from 2006 sales of
$56.7 million, reflecting increased sales of gas
springs, hydraulic dampers, and other products par-
ticularly in Germany and other European countries.
Our Sealing Products reporting segment achieved
sales of $46.7 million during 2007, an increase of
$4.7 million, or 11.2 percent from 2006 sales of
$42.0 million, as demand increased in aerospace,
defense, and railroad markets. Demand in the petro-
leum processing market continued to be strong. Our
other businesses achieved sales of $79.1 million dur-
ing 2007, up $7.9 million or 11.1 pereent from 2006
sales of $71.2 million. Sales of our other businesses
increased primarily due to growth in our liquid and
air filtration businesses.

Gross profit for 2007 equaled $184.3 million or
40.8 percent of sales as compared to $167.4 million
or 41.4 percent of sales for 2006. Higher gross profit

was attributable to increased demand for our prod-
ucts in all business segments. Lower gross margin
was due to the combined effects of product mix
shifts, costs to ramp up our wind energy expansion,
and higher costs associated with the partially com-
pleted relocation of a portion of our Sealing Preducts
business.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
totaled $73.0 million, including the $5.0 million posi-
tive effect of the gain on the sale of a component of
the Friction Control Products reporting segment, and
equaled 16.2 percent of sales. Selling, general and
administrative expenses in 2006 totaled $68.7 million
or 17.0 percent of sales. Selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses increased in support of higher
sales, particulatly in the expansion of the Company’s
sales force, and also because of aceelerated amortiza-
tion of stock awards associated with the retirements
of two executive officers during 2007,

Operating income, including the aforementioned
$5.0 million gain, equaled $111.3 million during
2007, compared to $98.7 million in 2006, with oper-
ating margins of 24.6 percent and 24.4 percent in
2007 and 2006.

On a reporting segment basis, operating income
from the Friction Control Products reporting segment
was $74.2 million during 2007 as compared to
$67.9 million during 2006. The increase is the result
of higher sales of custom-engineered bearings to the
wind energy and machinery equipment markets, and
of split roller bearing products used globally in vari-
ous industrial markets, and the $5.0 million gain on
the sale of a component of this reporting segment.

The Velocity Control Produets reporting segment
contributed $16.2 million to our consolidated operat-
ing income during 2007 as compared to $12.9 million
during 2006. The Sealing Preducts reporting segment
contributed $8.5 million to our consolidated operating
income during 2007 as compared to $6.4 million
during 2006. The increased operating income in both
of these segments was due primarily to higher sales
in 2007.

QOur other businesses contributed $10.8 million
to our consolidated operating income during 2007 as
compared to $6.5 million during 2006. Each of our
other businesses generated increased operating
income in 2007 compared with 2006, primarily as a
result of higher sales, particularly of our liquid and
air filtration products.

During both 2007 and 2006, $9.3 million of
interest and amortization of issuance costs related to
our $200.0 million of 4% Contingent Convertible

KAYDON CORPORATION FORM 10K 11




Senior Subordinated Notes was charged to interest
expense,

Because of higher investment interest rates and
higher average cash and cash equivalent, and short-
term investment balances, interest income increased
to $18.1 million during 2007, compared with
$16.3 million during 2006.

The effective tax rate for 2007 was 35.1 percent
compared to 34.0 percent in 2006. The effective tax
rate for 2006 reflects reductions to the tax provision
related to deductions recognized for financial report-
ing purposes, after examinations by certain taxing
authorities, or after the expiration of applicable
review periods, totaling $1.7 million. We expect the
effective tax rate for 2008 to be approximately
36.0 percent.

Our net income for 2007, including the $3.1 mil-
lion after tax gain on the sale of a component of a
reporting segment, was $77.7 million or $2.41 per
share on a diluted basis, based on 34.7 million com-
mon shares outstanding, compared with net income
for 2006 of $69.5 million or $2.17 per share on a
diluted basis, based on 34.8 million common shares
outstanding.

Analysis of 2006 Operations Compared to
2005 Operations

Selected Data For The Year 2006 Compared With
The Year 2005

For the Years Ended

December 31,
2006 2005

{In thousands, ercept

per share amounis)
Results from continuing operations:
Net sales $403,992  $354,558
Gross profit $167,426  $139,030
Gross profit margin 411.4% 39.2%
Selling, general and

administrative expenses $ 68,746 § 68,854

Operating income $ 98680 § 70,176
Operating margin 24.4% 19.8%
Interest expense $ (9,554) $ (9,579)
Interest income $ 16,258 & 8,747
After tax income $ 69,508 % 46,530
Earnings per share - diluted $ 217 $ 152

Net sales of continuing operations of $404.0 mil-
lion in 2006 increased $49.4 million or 18.9 percent
compared to 2005’s net sales of $354.6 million. Spe-
cifically, the Friction Control Products reporting seg-
ment achieved sales of $234.0 million during 2006,
up $39.0 million or 20.0 percent compared to 2005
sales of $195.0 million. The increase was principally
the result of higher demand for custom-engineered
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bearings to various defense-related markets of

$15.1 miltion, the wind energy market of $6.8 million,
the heavy equipment market of $3.9 million, the
medical equipment market of $3.2 million, the spe-
cialty electronics market of $2.5 million, and the
machinery market of $1.9 million. Sales of split roller
bearings, used globally in varidus industrial markets,
increased $4.8 million compared to 2005. Our Veloc-
ity Control Products reporting segment achieved sales
of $56.7 milkion during 2006, up $2.9 million, or

5.4 percent from 2005 sales of $53.8 million, reflect-
ing increased sales of gas springs, hydraulic dampers,
and other products in Germany and other European
countries. Our Sealing Products reporting segment
achieved sales of $42.0 million during 2006, an
increase of $3.5 million, or 9.0)percent from 2005
sales of $38.5 million, as demand increased from both
the aerospace and petroleum p{-ocessing markets. Our
other businesses achieved saleg of $71.2 million dur-
ing 2006, up $4.0 million, or 6.0 percent from 2005
sales of $67.2 million. Sales growth in our other
businesses was due primarily to growth in our air
and liquid filtration businesses.

Gross profit from continuing operations for 2006
equaled $167.4 million or 41.4 percent of sales as
compared to $139.0 million or 39.2 percent of sales
for 2005. Compared to 2005, gross margin for 2006
was favorably impacted by the'full-year effect of
selling price and capacity increases implemented dur-
ing the second half of 2005, increased demand, and
the Company’s ongoing focus dn improving operating
efficiencies.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
from continuing operations totaled $68.7 million or
17.0 percent of sales in 2006, ¢compared to $68.9 mil-
lion or 19.4 percent of sales foir 2005. Primarily as a
result of the Company’s effort to reduce its exposure
to changes in exchange rates applicable to non-fune-
tional currency assets and liabi]ities, we recorded an
exchange gain of $0.3 million in 2006, compared to
an exchange loss of $2.9 million in 2005, resulting in
a $3.2 million decrease in selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses when comparing 2006 to 2005. In
addition, in 2006 the Company’s selling, general and
administrative expenses were favorably impacted by
$0.8 million resulting from an insurance refund, and
a reduction in the Company’s environmental reserves.

Operating income from continuing operations
equaled $98.7 million during 2006, compared to
$70.2 million in 2005, with ope:rating margins of
24.4 percent and 19.8 percent in 2006 and 2005.

i
On a reporting segment basis, operating income
from the Friction Control Products reporting segment




was $67.9 million during 2006 as compared to

$49.5 million during 2005. The increase is the result
of increased sales of custom-engineered bearings to
the wind energy, defense, heavy equipment and med-
ical equipment markets, and of split roller bearing
products used globally in various industrial markets.
The growth of operating income was also positively
affected by the full-year benefit of actions taken in
tne second half of 2005 to increase certain selling
prices and achieve improved operating efficiencies.

The Velocity Control Products reporting segment
contributed $12.9 million to our consolidated operat-
ing income during 2006 as compared to $12.2 million
during 2005. Operating income growth was due
primarily to higher sales in 2006.

The Sealing Products reporting segment contrib-
uted $6.4 million to our consolidated operating
income during 2006 as compared to $5.9 million
during 2005. The increased operating income was
due primarily to higher sales in 2006.

Our other businesses contributed $6.5 million to
our consolidated operating income during 2006 as
compared to $4.6 million during 2005. Each of our
other businesses generated increased operating
income in 2006 compared with 2005, as a result of
cither higher sales or improved operating efficiencies.

During both 2006 and 2005, $9.8 million of
interest and amortization of issuance costs related to
our $200.0 million of 4% Contingent Convertible
i3enior Subordinated Notes was charged to interest
expense.

As a result of higher investment interest rates
and higher cash and cash equivalent balances, inter-
ast income increased to $16.3 million during 2006,
compared with $8.7 million during 2005.

The effective tax rate for continuing operations
for 2006 was 34.0 percent compared to 32.9 percent
in 2005. The effective tax rates for both 2006 and
2005 reflect reductions to the tax provisions related
to deductions recognized for financial reporting pur-
poses, after examinations by certain taxing authori-
ties, or after the expiration of applicable review
periods, totaling $1.7 million in 2006 and $1.1 million
in 2005.

Our income from continuing operations for 2006
was $69.5 million or $2.17 per share on a diluted
basis, based on 34.8 million common shares outstand-
ing, compared with ineome from continuing opera-
tions for 2005 of $46.5 million or $1.52 per share on
a diluted basis, based on 84.7 million common shares
outstanding.

Inecome from discontinued operations for 2005
equaled $27.4 million, including the after tax gain of
$25.4 million on the sale of the Power and Data
Transmission Products Group. Diluted earnings per
share from discontinued operations for 2005 were
$0.79, with $0.73 resulting from the gain on the
sale.

Our net income for 2006 was $69.5 million or
$2.17 per share on a diluted basis, compared with
net income for 2005 of $73.9 million or $2.30 per
share on a diluted basis.

Liquidity, Working Capital, and Cash Flows

One of our financial strategies is to maintain an
adequate level of liquidity supported by strong cash
flow, which continued in 2007. Historically, we have
generated significant cash flows from operating
activities to fund capital expenditures, dividends and
other operating requirements. Cash flow generation
has been enhanced by our continuing efforts to
improve operating efficiencies, cost reductions and
the management of working capital requirements.
One of our strengths is our ability to generate cash
from operations in excess of requirements for capital
investments and dividends. Net cash from operating
activities equaled $74.3 million in 2007, $89.9 million
in 2006, and $41.2 million in 2005. Net cash from
operating activities in 2007 declined compared to
2006 due to the full funding of our qualified pension
plans in 2007 and investment in working capital
associated with sales growth, which were only par-
tially offset by higher net income. The pension fund-
ing is expected to substantially eliminate
contributions to these plans for the next five years,
Net capital expenditures to expand productive capac-
ity, improve quality, and reduce costs equaled
$54.1 million in 2007, $26.3 million in 2006 and
$12.6 million in 2005. The increase in capital expen-
ditures in 2007 compared to 2006 was driven princi-
pally by the wind energy growth initiative announced
in 2006 and expanded in 2007. This initiative will
increase the Company's capaecity to provide perfor-
mance-eritical specialty bearings to serve the rapidly
growing wind energy industry. During 2007, the
Company announced its intention to increase by
$48.0 million the investment in this initiative. This
investment, combined with the $30.0 million invest-
ment announced in 2006, will result in a total invest-
ment of approximately $80.0 million to expand our
wind energy production capabilities. During 2007,
capital expenditures totaled $29.1 million for the
wind energy growth initiative. During 2008, we
expect to invest approximately $70-$75 million in net
capital expenditures. The Company paid common
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stock dividends totaling $14.4 million in 2007 and
$13.5 million in each of 2006 and 2005. The dividend
payments in 2005, 2006, and through the third quar-
ter 2007, were at a quarterly rate of $0.12 per share.
The dividend declared in July 2007, and paid early in
the fourth quarler, was at a quarterly rate of $0.15
per share.

During 2005, the Company entered into an
agreement for its senior credit facility with its syndi-
cate of lenders. The credit agreement provides for a
$300.0 million senior unsecured revolving credit facil-
ity. The credit facility provides for borrowings and
issuance of letters of credit by the Company and its
subsidiaries in various currencies for general corpo-
rate purposes, including acquisitions. The credit facil-
ity matures on July 12, 2010 and is guaranteed by
the Company and certain of the Company’s domestic
subsidiaries. Interest expense incurred on borrowings
under the revolving credit facility will be based on
the London Interbank Offered Rate. The revolving
credit facility contains restrictive financial covenants
on a consolidated basis including leverage and cover-
age ratios, utilizing measures of earnings and inter-
est expense as defined in the revolving credit facility
agreement. Under the leverage ratio restriction, the
Company may not allow the ratio of total indebted-
ness, net of domestic eash in excess of $15.0 million,
to adjusted earnings before interest expense, taxes,
depreciation and amortization to exceed 3.5 to 1.0.
Under the interest coverage ratio restriction, the
Company may not allow the ratio of adjusted earn-
ings bhefore interest expense and taxes to interest
expense to be less than 3.0 to 1.0. The Company is
in compliance with all restrictive covenants contained
in the revolving credit facility at December 31, 2007.
After consideration of the facility’s eovenants and
$4.9 million of letters of credit issued under the
facility, the Company has available credit under its
revolving credit facility of $295.1 million at Decem-
ber 31, 20017.

Fees related to the revolving credit facility of
approximately $1.2 million are being amortized as a
component of interest expense over a five-year
period. Revolving eredit facility fees included in other
assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2007, equaled $0.6 million.

During 2005, we completed the sale of the
Power and Data Transmission Products Group for
$71.4 million cash, resulting in an after tax gain of
$25.4 million or $0.73 per diluted share, which is
reported as a eomponent of income from discontinued
operations.
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The Company continues its corporate develop-
ment efforts to complement internal growth through
the acquisition of additional companies that meet
Kaydon’s well-disciplined criterig, and on October 26,
2007, acquired Avon Bearings Corporation for
$54.9 million. An independent appraiser was engaged
to assist management in determining the fair values
of separately recognized intangil}le assets of Avon.
After allocating cost to other assgets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair val-
ues, the excess cost of the acquisition, equal to
$27.4 million, was recognized as goodwill. In January
2005, the Company aequired Purafil, Ine. for
$42.7 million. An independent appraiser was engaged
to assist management in determining the fair values
of separately recognized intangible assets of Purafil.
After allocating cost to other assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair val-
ues, the excess cost of the acquisition, equal to
$18.5 million, was recognized as'goodwill.

The Company’s payments to various taxing
authorities were $25.1 million, $28.9 million, and
$38.0 million during 2007, 2006 and 2005. Tax
payments for 2005 include $16.6 million related to
the gain on the sale of discontimied operations. Tax
payments are estimated to be api)roximately $44 mil-
lion during 2008. |

The Company has outstanding $200.0 million of
4% Contingent Convertible Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2023 (the “Notes™). The Notes bear
interest at 4 percent per year, payable semi-annually,
and under certain circumstances beginning in 2008,
may bear additional contingent interest of 0.50 per-
cent per year. The Notes are convertible into a total
of 6,858,710 shares of our common stock at a
conversion price of $29.16 per share, provided certain
contingencies are met including that our common
stock has traded above $34.99 for specified periods
of time. The Notes may not be redeemed by us until
May 30, 2008 but are redeemablé at any time there-
after at par, plus accrued and unpaid interest. The
Notes are convertible into common stock upen the
issuance of a notice of redemption. Holders of the
Notes will have the option to require us to purchase
their Notes at par for one day each at the end of 5,
10, and 15 years after issuance. In addition, the
holders have the right to require redemption of the
Notes before the specified maturity dates in the event
of a change of control of the Company, as identified
in the Notes’ Indenture.

In addition, the contingent in!terest feature of
the Notes requires the Company to deduct for tax
purposes an amount of interest expense that is
greater than the stated coupon rafte. The additional




interest may have to be recaptured for tax purposes,
in part or in whole, if the Notes are redeemed or
surrendered for conversion at an amount less than
the tax accreted value. Should this happen, depend-
ing on other factors, tax payments may increase. The
total deferred tax liability on the additional interest
deduction representing the potential tax payment
from the redemption or conversion totaled $18.4 mil-
lion at December 31, 2007. Redemption or conversion
of the Notes may cause volatility in tax payments,
cash flows and the liquidity of the Company.

Note issuance costs of approximately $6.5 million
are being amortized as a component of interest
expense over a five-year period. Unamortized note
issuance costs included in other assets in the Consol-
idated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007
equaled $0.5 million,

We repurchased 601,974 shares of our eommon
stock in 2007 for $30.1 million compared to
46,355 shares in 2006 for $3.4 million and
£07,771 shares in 2005 for $6.1 million. In 2005, the
Company’s Board of Directors authorized a new
ghare repurchase program of up to 5,000,000 shares
that replaced the existing program. Of the
£,000,000 shares currently authorized by the Board
of Directors for repurchase, 718,829 shares have
heen repurchased as of December 31, 2007. We will
continue to make opportunistic stock repurchases
during 2008, the amount of which will depend on the

market for our common stock and our financial posi-
tion and liquidity.

We believe our current cash and short-term
investment balances and future eash flows from oper-
ations, along with our borrowing capacity and access
to financial markets are adequate to fund our strate-
gies for future growth, including working capital,
expenditures for manufacturing expansion and effi-
ciencies, selected stock repurchases, market share
initiatives and corporate development activities.

At December 31, 2007, the current ratio was
7.5 to 1 and working capital totaled $380.4 million,
including cash and cash equivalents, and short-term
investments of $287.0 million.

The Company hag recorded in other assets a
$15.0 million gross investment representing the non-
current portion of the Company’s position in an
investment fund. This fund has been closed by the
fund issuer. The fund issuer, owned by a major bank,
has restricted the redemption of the fund to permit
its orderly liquidation as the underlying fund assets
mature or are sold. At December 31, 2007, an unre-
alized loss on this investment totaling $0.3 million,
$0.2 million net of tax, was recorded to reduce the
value of the long-term asset, with an offset to accu-
mulated other comprehensive income.

Our significant contractual obligations as of
December 31, 2007 are set forth below:

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years  3-5 years 5 years
(In thousands)

4% Contingent Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

due 2023 (puttable in 2008) $200,000  $200,000 3 — $ — 8 —
Operating leases 13,376 2,073 5,199 3,398 2,705
Hurchase obligations for property, plant and equipment 29,460 29,460 —_ — —

Total $242,835  $231,533 $5,199 $3,398 $2,705

Holders of our Notes may require us to repur-
chase all or a portion of their Notes on May 23,
£008. If the holders of the Notes exercise their right
to require us to repurchase all or a portion of their
Notes on May 23, 2008, the Company intends to
refinance the obligation on a long-term basis with its
revolving credit facility. Because the Company has
the ability and intent to refinance the obligation on a
long-term basis, the Notes continue to be reported as
long-term debt at December 31, 2007. See the Notes
io Consolidated Financial Statements (Note ) for
additional information about the Notes, Interest pay-
ments on the Notes, including anticipated contingent
interest, are expected to be $8.6 million in 2008.

We do not expect to contribute to our qualified
pension plans, but expect to contribute approximately

$0.8 million to our postretirement benefit plans in
2008.

Corporate Development

Qur corporate development efforts are aimed to
complement internal growth through the acquisition
of additional companies consistent with our well-
disciplined eriteria. We maintain a disciplined acquisi-
tion program, which has made important contribu-
tions to our growth. In 2007, the Company acquired
all of the outstanding stock of Avon Bearings Corpo-
ration (“Avon”) in a cash transaction valued at
$54.9 million. Avon is a custom designer and manu-
facturer of high precision large diameter turntable
bearings. Avon also remanufactures bearings and
sells replacement bearings. In 2005, we acquired all
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of the outstanding stock of Purafil, Inc., a manufac-
turer and distributor of gas phase air filtration sys-
tems and media, in a cash transaction valued at
$42.7 million.

Litigation

We are a party to various other lawsuits and
matters arising in the normal course of business that
are pending. The Company’s estimated legal costs
expected to be incurred in connection with claims,
lawsuits and environmental matters are acerued in
the consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Qur consolidated financial statements are pre-
pared in eonformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of these finan-
cial statements requires the use of estimates, judg-
ments, and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and diselosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the periods presented.

We continually evaluate the estimates, judg-
ments, and assumptions used to prepare the consoli-
dated financial statements. In general, our estimates
are based on historical experience, on information
from third party professionals and on various other
judgments and assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the current facts and circum-
stances. Actual results could differ from the current
estimates made by the Company. We have identified
certain accounting policies and estimates, deseribed
below, that are the most critical to the portrayal of
our current financial condition and results of
operations.

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower
of cost or market, with cost determined on a first-in,
first-out basis. The carrying value of inventory is
reduced for estimated obsclescence by the difference
between its cost and the estimated market value
based upon assumptions regarding future demand.
We evaluate the inventory carrying value for poten-
tial excess and obsolete inventory exposures by ana-
lyzing historical and anticipated demand. In addition,
inventories are evaluated for potential obsolescence
due to the effect of known or anticipated engineering
change orders, new products, and other factors.

We believe the accounting estimates related to
inventories to be critical aceounting estimates
because the range of assumptions used to determine
the valuation of inventories, while based on
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reasonable and supportable information, may change
causing projected outcomes based on the assumptions
to vary.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - We con-
tinually evaluate whether events and eircumstances
have oceurred that indicate the remaining estimated
useful lives of long-lived assets including fixed assets
and amortizable intangible assets may warrant revi-
sion or that remaining balances may not be recover-
able. When factors indicate that such costs should be
evaluated for possible impairment, we use an esti-
mate of undiscounted future cash flows over the
remaining lives of the long-lived assets that is com-
pared to the carrying value of the asset to evaluate
whether the asset costs are reeoverable.

We believe the accounting e%stimates related to
long-lived asset impairment to be critical accounting
estimates because: the estimate of undiscounted
future cash flows, while based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections, requires the
Company’s subjective judgments; the time periods for
estimating future cash flows is often lengthy which
increases the sensitivity to assumptions made; and
projected outcomes based on the assumptions made
can vary,

To better understand this accounting policy and
its impact on the Company, readers should refer to
the Notes to Consolidated Pinancial Statements
(Note 1 and Note 10) in this Annual Report for
additional information regarding long-lived assets.

Impairment of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived
Intangible Assets - The Company annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indi-
cate a need, tests the carrying amounts of goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment.

We identify impairment of goodwill by compar-
ing the fair value of each of our reporting units with
the reporting unit’s carrying amount. The fair value
of each of our reporting units is derived from an
estimate of discounted future eash flows including
estimates for terminal value. In 2007 we used an
11.5 percent discount rate, and a growth assumption
of 2 percent in perpetuity to calculate terminal value.
In 2006 an 11 percent discount rate was utilized. The
discount rate used each year is the value-weighted
average of the Company’s estimated cost of equity
and estimated cost of debt (“cost of capital”)
derived using both known and estimated, customary,
marketplace metrics. The pﬁncip}a.l marketplace met-
ric used in the estimation of the discount rate, which
changed from 2006 to 2007, was an industry capital
structure that was more heavily weighted toward




the equity component, which has a higher cost. Our
caleulation methodology was unchanged during 2007,
and the consistent application of this methodology
may result in changes in the discount rate in future
periods. Potential goodwill impairment ig identified if
a reporting unit’s carrying amount is more than a
reporting unit’s fair value, If this occurs, normally a
third-party valuation specialist is utilized to assist the
{Company in determining the implied fair value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill. The amount of any actual
impairment loss is calculated by comparing the
implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill
with the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s _
groodwill.

Certain trademarks are the Company's only
indefinite-lived intangible assets. We identify impair-
ment of these trademarks by comparing their fair
value to their carrying amounts. The fair values of
the trademarks are calculated based on estimates of
discounted future cash flows related to the net
amount of royalty expenses avoided due to the exist-
ence of the trademarks.

We believe the accounting estimates related to
impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets to be eritical accounting estimates because:
the estimate of discounted future cash flows and
terminal values, while based on reasonable and sup-
portable assumptions and projections, requires the
Company's subjective judgments; the time periods for
astimating future cash flows is often lengthy which
increases the sensitivity to assumptions made; pro-
seeted outcomes based on the assumptions made can
vary; and the calculation of implied fair value is
inherently subject to estimates.

To better understand this accounting policy and
its impact on the Company, readers should refer to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Note 10) in this Annual Report for additional infor-
mation regarding goodwill and intangible assets.

4% Contingent Convertible Senior Subordi-
nated Notes - We have outstanding $200.0 million
of 4% Contingent Convertible Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2023 (the “Notes™). The Notes are con-
vertible into a total of 6,858,710 shares of our com-
mon stock at a conversion price of $29.16 per share,
provided certain contingencies are met. The Notes
become convertible during any calendar quarter if the
closing sale price of Company common stock is more
than $34.99 for at least 20 trading days in a period
of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last
trading day of the preceding calendar quarter. Based
on this formula, holders will be able to convert their
Notes during the first quarter of 2008.

Holders of the Notes may require us to repur-
chase all or a portion of their Notes on May 23,
2008, 2013, and 2018, at 100 percent of the principal
amount of the Notes, plus accrued but unpaid inter-
est (including contingent interest and liquidated
damages, if any) to the date of repurchase, payable
in cash. If the holders of the Notes exercise their
right to require us to repurchase all or a portion of
their Notes on May 23, 2008, the Company intends
to refinance the obligation on a long-term basis with
its revolving credit facility. Because the Company has
the ability and intent to refinance the obligation on a
long-term hasis, the Notes continue to be reported as
long-term debt at December 31, 2007.

Generally accepted accounting principles require
that the impact of contingently convertible instru-
ments that are convertible into common stock upon
the achievement of a specified market price of the
issuer’s shares, such as the Company’s Notes, should
be included in diluted earnings per share computa-
tions regardless of whether or not the market price
trigger has been met. Accordingly, net income used
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
amounts is adjusted by adding back the after tax
interest expense, including amortization of debt issu-
ance costs attributable to the Notes, and total shares
outstanding are inereased by the number of shares
that would be issuable upon conversion.

In addition, the contingent interest feature of
the Notes requires the Company to deduct for tax
purposes an amount of interest expense that is
greater than the stated coupon rate. The additional
interest deduction on the Notes may have to be
recaptured for tax purposes, in part or in whole, if
the Notes are redeemed or surrendered fer conversion
at an amount less than the tax accreted value.
Should this happen, depending on other factors, tax
payments may increase. If the Notes are redeemed or
surrendered for conversion at an amount less than
the tax accreted value, the deferred tax liability
provided for, which totals $18.4 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2007, would be eliminated through an adjust-
ment to the Company's shareholders’ equity and
would not affect current tax accounts.

We believe that the impact the Notes have on
the accounting for our diluted earnings per share
calculations, and tax-related account balances as dis-
cussed above are critical to the understanding of our
current financial condition and results of operations.
The existence of the Notes has caused further dilu-
tion to our diluted earnings per share calculation, and
redemption or surrender for conversion of the Notes
at an amount less than the tax acereted value may
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cause volatility in tax payments, cash flows and the
liquidity of the Company.

To better understand the Notes and their impact
on the Company’s financial reporting, readers should
refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments {Note 2 and Note 4 ) and other discussions in
this Annual Report.

Retirement Benefits - Our employee pension
and postretirement benefit eosts and obligations
recorded in the financial statements are dependent on
the Company’s estimates provided to and used by our
actuaries in calculating such amounts.

We believe the accounting estimates related to
retirement benefits to be critical accounting estimates
because of the wide range of assumptions used in
deriving yearly contribution and expense amounts as
well as the amounts recorded for retirement benefits
in our financial statements. Significant assumptions
include judgments regarding discount rates, health
care cost trend rates, salary growth rates, and long-
term returns on plan assets.

We have developed estimates based on historical
experience, on information from third party profes-
sionals and on various other judgments and agsump-
tions that are believed to be reasonable under the
current facts and circumstances. In developing the
discount rate assumption used to determine the pen-
sion and postretirement benefit obligations at Sep-
tember 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company caleulated
the cash flows represented by the projected benefit
obligations of three pension plans constituting
greater than 90 percent of the Company’s pension
plans’ total projected benefit obligation. These cash
flows were discounted at corresponding interest rates
derived from a hypothetical yield eurve constructed
using the top quartile of high rated (Aa or AA) non-
callable bonds with at least $150.0 million of par
value outstanding. The equivalent weighted-average
discount rate is caleulated by imputing the interest
rate that equates the total present value with the
stream of future cash flows. The discount rate appli-
cable to the Company’s three largest pension plans
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was also used for all qualified pénsion plans and the
Company's postretirement benefit plans. In 2007 and
2006, a similar, independent development of the dis-
count rate agsumption was used for the non-qualified
pension plan. Prior to using the yield curve approach,
the discount rate assumptions used for the pension
and postretirement net periodic benefit costs in 2005
were based on investment yields available on long-
term corporate bonds. Health care cost trend assump-
tions are developed based on historical data, the
near-term outlook, and on an assessment of likely
long-term trends. Salary growth assumptions reflect
our long-term experience, the near-term outlook and
assumed inflation. Long-term return on plan assets is
based on an evaluation of historiecal and expected
returns of the individual asset classes comprising the
total plan assets. |

Assumed discount rates, expected rate of return
on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase
have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
the pension plans. A 1.0 percent ‘increase in the
discount rate would have decreased the net periodic
benefit cost by $1.4 million during 2007, and would
have decreased the projected benefit obligation as of
the measurement date by $10.7 million. A 1.0 percent
decrease in the discount rate would have increased
the net periodic benefit cost by $1.5 miilion during
2007, and would have increased :che projected benefit
obligation as of the measurement date by $13.1 mil-
lion. A 1.0 percent increase in the expected rate of
return on plan assets would have decreased the net
periodic benefit cost by $0.7 million during 2007, and
a 1.0 percent decrease in the expected rate of return
on plan assets would have increased the net periodic
benefit cost by $0.7 million during 2007. A 1.0 per-
cent increase in the rate of eompensation increase
would have increased the net periodic benefit cost by
$0.7 million during 2007, and wduld have increased
the projected benefit obligation as of the measure-
ment date by $3.2 million. A 1.0 percent decrease in
the rate of compensation increase would have
decreased the net periodic benefit cost by $0.6 million,
and would have decreased the projected benefit obli-
gation as of the measurement date by $2.6 miilion.




The following table summarizes certain of the Company’s assumptions:

Postretirement.
Pension Benefits Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate - qualified pension plans and postretirement benefit plans 6.50% 6.00% 6.50% 6.00%
Discount rate — non-qualified pension plan 6.25% 5.75% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 6.00% - 5.75% 6.00% 5.75%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increage 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Actual results that differ from our assumptions
cre accumulated and amortized over future periods
and, therefore, generally affect our recognized
expense and recorded obligation in such future peri-
ods. While we believe that the assumptions used are
appropriate, significant differences in actual experi-
ence or significant changes in assumptions would
affect our pension and postretirement benefits costs
and obligations,

To better understand this accounting policy and
its impact on the Company, readers should refer to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stafements
(Note 7) in this Annual Report for additional infor-
mation regarding costs, obligations, and assumptions
for employee pension and postretirement benefits.

Income Taxes - We record deferred tax assets
and liabilities using enacted tax rates for the effect
of differences between the book and tax basis of
recorded assets and liabilities. These deferred tax
assets and liabilities are reviewed for recoverability
by using estimates of future taxable income streams
and the impact of tax planning strategies. Deferred
tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if it
is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred
lax asset will not be realized. Reserves are also
estimated for ongoing audits regarding federal, state

and international issues that are currently unresolved.

Income tax is provided based upon an effective tax
rate that is dependent upon tax regulations govern-
ing the regicns in which we conduct business, geo-
rraphic composition of worldwide earnings, the
availability of tax credits and other factors. In 2006
and 2005 our effective tax rate was affected by
reductions to our tax provision related to deductions
recognized for financial reporting purposes, after
examinations by taxing authorities, or after the expi-
ration of applicable review periods.

The Company has liabilities recorded for unrec-
ognized tax benefits totaling $2.8 million as of
December 31, 2007, all of which would affect the
cffective tax rate, It is the Company’s policy to

include interest and penalties incurred due to under-
payment or late payment of income taxes due to a
taxing authority on a net-of-tax basis as a compo-
nent of income tax expense. The Company has
recorded $0.8 million in liabilities for tax related
interest and penalties on its consolidated balance
sheet, as of December 31, 2007. The Company does
not expect that the total amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits will significantly change within the next
twelve months.

The Company, or one of its subsidiaries,
operates and files income tax returns in the United
States, vartous states, and foreign jurisdictions. For-
eign jurisdictions significant to the Company include
Germany and the United Kingdom. With limited
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal tax examinations for years before 2004,
state examinations for years before 2002, German
tax examinations for years before 2004, or United
Kingdom {ax examinations for years before 2005.

We believe the accounting estimates related to
income taxes to be eritical accounting estimates
because the range of assumptions used to determine
deferred tax assets and liabilities and to record
current tax benefits and liabilities, while based on
reasonable and supportable information, may change
from year to year causing projected outcomes based
on the assumptions to vary.

To better understand this accounting policy and
its impact on the Company, readers should refer to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Note 9) in this Annual Report for additional infor-
mation regarding income taxes.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 regarding the Company’s
plans, expectations, estimates and beliefs. Forward-
looking statements are typieally identified by words
such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,”
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“expects,” “intends,” “will,” “may,” “should,”
“could,” “potential,” “projects,” “approximately,” and
other similar expressions, including statements
regarding pending litigation, general economic condi-
tions, competitive dynamics and the adequacy of
capital resources. These forward-looking statements
may include, among other things, projections of the
Company’s finaneial performance, anticipated
growth, characterization of and the Company’s ability
to control contingent liabilities and anticipated trends
in the Company’s businesses. These statements are
only predictions, based on the Company’s current
expectation about future events. Although the Com-
pany believes the expectations reflected in the for-
ward-looking statements are reasonable, it cannot
guarantee future results, performance or achieve-
ments or that predictions or current expectations will
be accurate, These forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties that could cause the
Company’s actual results, performance or achieve-
ments to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by the forward-looking statements.

LYY

In addition, the Company or persons acting on
its behalf may from time to time publish or commu-
nicate other items that could also be construed to be
forward-looking statements. Statements of this sort
are or will be based on the Company’s estimates,
assumptions, and projections and are suhject to risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those included in the forward-
looking statements. Kaydon does not undertake any
respensibility to update its forward-looking state-
ments or risk factors to reflect future events or
circumstances except to the extent required by appli-
cable law.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks, which
exist as part of our ongoing business operations
including interest rates and foreign currency
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exchange rates. The exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily to invest-
ments in eash and cash equivalents, and short-term
investments. All highly liquid investments, including
highly liquid debt and investment instruments pur-
chased with an original maturity of three months or
less, are considered cash equivalpnts. Short-term
investments include auction rate, securities and other
investments that are classified as available-for-sale
and expected to be realized in cdsh or sold or
consumed within the next twelve months. We place
our investments in cash equivalents with high credit
quality issuers and limit the amount of exposure to
any one issuer. A 51 basis point decrease in interest
rates (10 percent of the Company’s weighted-
average investment. interest rate for 2007) would not
have a material impact on the Company’s pre-tax
earnings. We conduct business in various foreign
currencies, primarily in Europe, Mexico, and Asia.
Therefore, changes in the value of currencies of these
countries in these regions affect our financial condi-
tion and cash flows when translated into U.S. doilars.
We have mitigated and will continue to mitigate a
portion of our currency exposure through operation
of decentralized foreign operating companies in which
certain costs are local currency hased. In addition,
periodically, we enter into derivative financial instru-
ments in the form of forward foreign exchange con-
tracts to reduce the effect of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. A 10 percent ch:ange in the value of
all foreign currencies would not have a material
effect on the Company’s financial condition and cash
flows. Management’s estimate of the fair value of
long-term debt is determined by reference to market
data. As of December 31, 2007, the fair value of
long-term debt is approximately 80 percent greater
than its recorded value. The change in the fair value
of long-term debt, which is convertible into Company
common stock, would be expecte:d to fluctuate consis-
tently with the market price of Company common
stock.




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Kaydon’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. Internal eontrol over financial reperting is defined under applicable Securities and Exchange
Commission rules as a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer and effected by the Company’s Board of Directors, management and other personnel to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the
Company’s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company’s internal eontrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

+» Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and the Directors of the Company; and

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s agsets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the eonsolidated
financial statements of the Company included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued their report on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. Their
report is included herein under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm -
Internal Control.”
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM -
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Kaydon Corporation

We have audited Kaydon Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Comimittee of Sponsor-
ing Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSQO criteria}. Kaydon Corporation’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report On
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal
control over financia! reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial réporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or timely deteetion of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are sub'ject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Kaydon Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the thrée years in the
period ended December 31, 2007 of Kaydon Corporation and our report dated February 11,,2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.,

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 11, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM -
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

"The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Kaydon Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kaydon Corporation as of December 31,
2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for
2ach of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits alse included the financial
statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
istatements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
agsurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Kaydon Corporation at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006 the Company adopted required
provisions of Financial Aceounting Standards Board Statement 158, Employers’ Accounting for Deﬁned
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.

We have also audited, in accordanee with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Kaydon Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 11, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 11, 2008
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KAYDON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 229093000 $ 370,789,000
Short-term investments 57,000,000 —
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $826,000 in 2007 and $1,029,000 in 2006 67,574,000 54,066,000
Inventories, net 68,896,000 56,043,000
Other current assets 15,411,000 17,012,000
Total current assets 438,874,000 497,910,000
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land and improvements 4,'{82,000 2,792,000
Buildings and leasehold improvements 45,6,96,000 39,210,000
Machinery and equipment 233,112,000 185,671,000
284,390,000 227,673,000
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (138,564,000)  (132,393,000)
145,826,000 95,280,000
Goodwill, net 146,922,000 119,484,000
Other intangible assets, net 31,162,000 21,271,000
Other assets 23,781,000 3,611,000

$ 786,565,000

$ 737,556,000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3 28,4;98,000 $ 23,044,000
Acerued expenses:
Salaries and wages 10,8;34,000 9,961,000
Employee benefits 4,3§6,000 4,131,000
Dividends payable 4,171,000 3,382,000
Other accrued expenses 7,622,000 6,764,000
Taxes payable 3,007,000 4,350,000
Total current liabilities 58,4%)8,000 51,632,000
Long-term debt 200,000,000 200,000,000
Long-term postretirement and postemployment benefit obligations 17,401,000 46,083,000
Deferred taxes 26,310,000 5,650,000
Other long-term liabilities 966,000 1,011,000
Total long-term liabilities 244‘6':’7,000 252,744,000
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock - (3$.10 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued) — —
Common stock -~ ($.10 par value, 98,000,000 shares authorized; 36,925,729 shares |
issued in 2007 and 2006) 3,693,000 3,693,000
Paid-in capital 49,859,000 43,889,000
Retained earnings 629,347,000 566,788,000
Less: Treasury stock, at cost; (9,414,337 and 8,832,896 shares in 2007 and 2006) {218,005,000)  (188,708,000)
Accumulated other eomprehensive income 18,496,000 7,618,000

483,390,000

433,180,000

$ 786,565,000

§ 737,556,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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KAYDON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005

Met Sales $451,382,000  $403,992,000 $354,558,000
R Cost of sales 267,082,000 236,566,000 215,528,000
Gross Profit 184,300,000 167,426,000 139,030,000

Selling, general and administrative expenses 73,037,000 68,746,000 68,854,000
(perating Income 111,263,000 98,680,000 70,176,000

Interest expense (9,552,000) (9,554,000} (9,579,000)

Interest income 18,051,000 16,253,000 8,747,000
Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 119,762,000 105,379,000 69,344,000

Provision for income taxes 42,055,000 35,871,000 22 814,000
Income From Continuing Operations 77,707,000 69,508,000 46,530,000
Income From Discontinued Operations (including the gain

on disposal of $40,969,000) - — 43,943,000

Provision for income taxes — — 16,584,000
Income From Discontinued Operations — — 27,359,000
Net Income 3 77,707,000 $ 69,608,000 § 73,889,000
Earnings Per Share - Continuing Operaticns

Basic $2.81 $2.50 $1.67

Diluted 32,41 $2.17 $1.52
Earnings Per Share - Discontinued Operations

Basic - _ $0.98

Diluted - - $0.79
Earnings Per Share

Basic $2.81 $2.50 $2.66

Diluted $2.41 $2.17 $2.30
Dividends Declared Per Share $0.54 $0.48 $0.48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

KAYDON CORPORATION FORM 10K 25




KAYDON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Accumulated
Restricted Other
Comprehensive  Common Paid-in Retained Treasary Stock Comprehensive
Income Stock Capital Earnings Stock Awards  Income (Loss) Total
Batance, December 31, 2004 $3,693,000 $47,399,000 $450,456,000 ${184,781,000} §(6,908,000) $(1,178,000) $308,681,000
Net income, 2005 $73,889.000 — — 73,889,000 — — — 73,889,000
Other comprehensive (loss), net of tax:
Minimum pension liability, net of ($798,000)
tax (1,830,000) - - - — — (1,330,000} (1,330,000}
Cumulative translation adjustments (3,912,000) — — — — - {3,912,000) (3,912,000}
Cumulative translation adjustments related to :
sale of discontinued operations (1,934,000) — — — - — (1,934,000} {1,934,000)
Comprehensive income $66,713,000
Cash dividends declared — — (13,527,000} - — —  (18,527,000)
Board of Directors deferred compensation — 73,000 -_ - — — 73,000
Issuance of 6,405 shares of common stock under '
the Board of Directors deferred compensation -
plan — {176,000} — 176,000 — — —
Issuance of 43,350 shares of common steck under
stock option plans — {95,600) - 1,225,000 — — 1,130,000
Purchase of 207,771 shares of treasury stock — — - (6,102,000) — — (6,102,000}
Restricted stock award grants — 501,000 — 3,371,000 (3,872,000) - -
Restricted stoek award cancellations —_ — — {488.,000) 488,000 - -
Compensation cost related to restricted
stock awards — — — — 2,708,000, — 2,708,000
Balance, December 31, 2005 $3.693,000 $47,702,000 $510,818,000 $(186,599,000) $(7,584,000) $(8,354,000)* $359,676,000
Net income, 2006 $69.508,000 — — 9,508,000 - — — 69,508,000
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: |
Minimum pension liability, net of ($1,521,000)
tax 3,036,000 — — — — — 3,036,000 3,036,000
Cumulative translation adjustments 5,169,000 — — — — — 5,169,000 5,169,000
Comprehensive income $77,713,000
Adoption of SFAS No, 158, net of ($1,938,000) '
tax — — — — — 7,667,000 17,667,000
Cash dividends declared - —  (13,53,000) - - —  (18,538,000)
Board of Directors deferred compensation — 66,000 — — — - 65,000
Issuance of 40,750 shares of common stock under
stock option plans — (264,000) — 1,445,000 — — 1,181,000
Stock option compensation — 274,000 — — - — 274,000
Tax benefit related to restricted stock awards — 432,000 — — — — 432,000
Purchase of 96,355 shares of treasury stock —_ — — {3,404,000) — — (3,404,000)
Restricted stock award cancellations — 150,000 — {150,000) — — —
Compensation cost related to restricted
stock awards —  §,114,000 — — — — 3,114,000
Reclassification of restricted stock awards — {7,584,000) — — 7584000 ! — —
Batance, December 31, 2006 $3,693,000 $43,889,000 $566,788,000 $(188,708,000) — § 7,518,000% $433,180,000
Net income, 2007 $77,707,000 — — 11,707,000 — — — 77,707,000
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: )
Cumulative translation adjustments 4,244,000 — — — - — 4,244,000 4,244,000
Postretirement benefit plans, net of (§$4,551,000}
tax 6,913,000 — — — — — 6,913,000 6,913,000
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale investments
net of ($108,000) tax (179,000 — — — — — ., (179,000) {179,000}
Comprehensive income $88,685,000 '
Cash dividends declared — —  (15,148,000) — - — (15,148,000}
Board of Directors deferred compensation — 83,000 — — -1 — 83,000
Issuanee of 4,250 shares of commuon stock under
stock option plans — {96.,000) — 195,000 - — 99,000
Stock option compensation — 674,000 - - — — 674,000
Tax benefit retated to restricted stock awards — 281.000 - - — — 281,000
Purchase of 601,974 shares of treasury stock — — —  (30,091,000) — — (30,091,000)
Restricted stock award cancellations — 50,000 —_ {50,000% - . - -
Compensation cost related to restricted
stock awards —  5627,000 — — - — 5,627,000
Vesting of post-2005 stock awards — (649,000) - 649,000 - — —
Balanee, December 31, 2007 $3,693,000 $49,859,000 $629,347,000 $(218,005,000) — I$]5,496.000' $483,390,000

* Comprised of cumulative translation adjustments of $11,194,000, after tax impact on pension benefits of $(5,407,000) and on other postretirement benefits of
$12,888,000, and after tax unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities of ${179,000) as of December 31, 2007, Comprised of cumulative translation
adjustments of $6,950,000, and after tax impact of adoption of SFAS No, 158 on pensien benefits of $(11,799,000) and on othei* postretirement benefits of
$12,367,000, as of December 31, 2006. Comprised of eumulative translation adjustments of $1,731,000 and minimum pensien labllity of $(10,135,000) as of
December 31, 2005.

\

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,
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KAYDON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
Zash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 77.707,000 § 69,508,000 $ 73,889,000
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — (27,359,000)
Gain on the sale of a component of a reporting segment (5,033,000) — —
Depreciation 11,813,000 11,234,000 10,740,000
Amortization of intangible assets 3,189,000 3,078,000 3,091,000
Amortization of stock awards 5,627,000 3,114,000 2,682,000
Deferred financing fees 1,548,000 1,548,000 1,660,000
Deferred taxes 18,223,000 9,889,000 5,651,000
Tax benefit related to stock options exercised 40,000 191,000 129,000
Steck option compensation 674,000 274,000 —
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (291,000) (623,000) —
Postretirement and postemployment benefit obligations {24,020,000) (3,001,000) {1,730,000)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and sale of
businesses and business components:
Accounts receivable {10,469,000) (2,469,000) (7,030,000}
Inventories (8,389,000) (8,417,000) (2,146,000}
Other assets 3,701,000 (1,650,000) (1,029,000}
Accounts payable 4,464,000 4,627,000 2,130,000
Accrued expenses and taxes payable (including in 2005 $16,574,000 of income :
taxes paid related to the sale of discontinued operations) (4,625,000) (2,443,000) (19,254,000}
Net cash from operating activities 74,259,000 29,860,000 41,224 000
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of short-term investments (398,856,000) — —
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 341,856,000 — -
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired {54,869,000) — (42,668,000)
Additions to property, plant and equipment, net (54,073,000) (26,294,000)  (12,560,000)
Purchases of long-term investments (15,000,000) — —
Proceeds from the sale of a component of a reporting segment 6,500,000 — —
Proceeds from the sale of discontinued operations - — 71,413,000
Net cash from {used in) investing activities (174,442,000) (26,294,000} 16,185,000
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Cash dividends paid {14,354,000)  {13,5630,000) (12,528,000)
Purchase of treasury stock (30,091,000) -+ (3,404,000) (6,102,000)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 99,000 1,003,000 1,000,000
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 291,000 623,000 —_
Payments on debt —_ (66,000) {62,000}
Credit facility issuance costs — — (940,000}
Net cash (used in) financing activities (44,055,000) {15,374,000) (19,632,000)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,442,000 1,793,000 612,000
Discontinwed Operations:
Operating cash flows — — 4,411,000
Investing cash flows — — (274,000)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents — — (308,000}
Net cash flows from discontinued operations — — 3,829,000
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (140,796,000} 49,985,000 42,218,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning of Year 370,789,000 320,804,000 278,586,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 229,993,000 $370,789,000 $320,804,000
Cash paid for income taxes (including in 2005 $16,574,000 of income taxes paid
related to the sale of discontinued operations) $ 25125000 ¢ 28,852,000 $ 38,034,000
Cash paid for interest $ 8,000,000 $ Q.OOS,OOO $ 8,023,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED Financial Statements.

NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of Kaydon Corporation and its wholly-
owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries (the “Com-
pany”). All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in con-

formity with U.S. generally accepted accounting prin-

ciples requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. During
2007, there were no material changes in the Compa-
ny’'s methods or policies used to establish estimates
and assumptions, Generally, matters subject to esti-
mation and judgment include amounts related to
accounts receivable realization, inventory obsoles-
cence, long-lived asset valualions including pension
and other postretirement benefit plan assumptions
(Note 7), income taxes (Note 9), and goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets (Note 10}. While
the Company does not believe that the uitimate
settlement of any such assets or liabilities will mate-
rially affect the Company’s financial condition or
results of future operations, actual results may differ
from estimates provided.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Short-term
Inrestments:

The Company considers all highly liquid debt
and investment instruments purchased with a matu-
rity of three months or less to be eash equivalents. In
addition to its cash and cash equivalent holdings at
December 31, 2007 the Company has short-term
investments. These short-term investments include
auction rate securities and other investments that are
classified as available-for-sale expected to be realized
in cash or sold or consumed within the next twelve
months, Available-for-gsale securities are carried at
fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net
of tax, reported as a component of shareholders’
equity. The unrealized gains and losses at Decem-
ber 31, 2007, were not significant.

28 KXAYDON CORPORATION FORM 10K

Cash and cash equivalents, and short-term
investments are summarized as follows at
December 31:

2007 2006

Cash and cash equivalents: \
Commercial paper $139,275.000 $ 95,667,000
Money market and other
short-term funds 84,850,000 106,802,000
Time deposits and other
interest. bearing accounts 4,113,000 47,648,000
U.5. Government treasury
bills ' — 119,384,000
Qther 1,755,000 1,288,000
Cash and cash equivalents $2291993,000  $370,789,000
Short-term investments 57,000,000 —
$286,993,000 $370,789,000

Inventories:
|

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or
market, with cost determined using the first-in, first-
out method, Inventories are summarized as follows at
December 31:

12007 2006
Raw material $26,311,000  $20,851,000
Work in process 17,991,000 11,828,000
Finished goods 29,594,000 23,364,000

$68.896.000  $56,043,000

|
Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipmerit are stated at cost.
The cost is depreciated over the estimated useful lives
of the assets using the straight-line method. The
Company recorded depreciation expense from con-
tinuing operations of $11.8 million, $11.2 million and
$10.7 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005. Useful lives
vary among the classifications, but generally fall

within the following ranges:
|

Buildings, land improvements and

leasehold improvements 10-40 years

Machinery and equipment 3-15 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
terms of the respective leases or over their useful
lives, whichever is shorter. Renewals and betterments
are capitalized while maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations in the year ifncurred.

The Company evaluates whetiaer events and cir-
cumstances have cccurred that indicate the remaining
1




]VOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F ’i%ancial St@tements (continued)

estimated useful lives of property, plant and equip-
ment may warrant revision or that the remaining
Ealances may not be recoverable, When factors indi-
cate that such costs should be evaluated for possible
impairment, the Company uses an estimate of the
tndiscounted cash flows over the remaining lives of
the assets to evaluate whether the costs are recover-
zble, The Company believes that there was no
impairment at December 31, 2007.

Other Assets:

Other assets primarily include $14.7 million of
long-term investments, $7.4 million of non-current
pension assets, and $1.2 miilion of deferred debt
issuance costs at December 31, 2007. The long-term
investments represent the non-current portion of the
Company’s position in an investment fund. This fund
has been closed by the fund issuer. The fund issuer,
owned by a major bank, has decided to restrict the
redemption of the fund to permit its orderly liguida-
{ion as the underlying fund assets mature or are sold.
At December 31, 2007, an unrealized loss on this
investment totaling $0.3 million, $0.2 million net of
tax, was recorded to reduce the value of the long-
verm asset, with an offset to accumulated other
comprehensive income. Other assets at December 31,
20086, primarily included $2.7 million of deferred debt
issuance costs.

Other Long-Term Liabilities:

Other long-term liabilities include environmental
reserves.

Derivative Financial Instruments:

The Company pericdically enters into derivative
financial instruments in the form of forward
exchange contracts to reduce the effect of fluctua-
tions in exchange rates on certain short-term inter-
company transactions as well as certain third-party
sales transactions denominated in non-functional cur-
rencies. Based on the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Account-
ing for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aetivi-
ties,” the Company records derivative financial
instruments at fair value. For derivative financial
instruments designated and qualifying as cash flow
hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on
these hedges is reported as a compenent of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income, and is reclassified
into earnings when the hedged transaction affects

earnings. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s
outstanding forward exchange contracts were not
material.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying amounts of financial instruments
included in current assets and current liabilities
approximate fair value due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. Management’s estimate of the
fair value of long-term debt is determined by refer-
ence to market data. As of December 31, 2007, the
fair value of long-term debt is approximately 80 per-
cent greater than its recorded value. The change in
the fair value of long-term debt, which is eonvertible
into Company common stock, would be expected to
fluctuate consistently with the market price of Com-
pany common stock.

Foreign Currency Translation:

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s interna-
tional subsidiaries are translated from the local fune-
tional currency into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate
in effect at year-end. Income statement accounts are
translated at the average rate of exchange in effect
during the year. The resulting cumulative {ranslation
adjustment is recorded as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income. Changes in
exchange rates applicable to non-functional currency
assets and liabilities are recorded as a component of
exchange gains and losses as a component of selling,
general and administrative expenses. Net exchange
gains recorded in 2007 and 2006, equaled $0.2 million
and $0.3 million, respectively. Net exchange losses
from continuing operations recorded in 2005 equaled
$2.9 million.

Stock-Based Compensation:

As of January 1, 20086, the Company adopted
the revision to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.” Therefore the Company
measures the cost of employee services received in
exchange for an award of equity instruments based
on the grant-date fair value of the award. The cost is
recognized over the period during which an employee
is required to provide service in exchange for the
award.

Through December 31, 2005, the Company
accounted for stock-based compensation granted to
employees and Directors using the intrinsic value
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED Financial Statements continued)

method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25. The following table details the effect
on net income and earnings per share from continu-
ing operations for 2005 had compensation cost for
stock-based awards been recognized based on the fair
value method prescribed under SFAS No. 123:

Reported income from continuing operations $46,530,000
Add: Total stock-based compensation expense
included in reported income from continuing
operations, net of tax 1,752,000
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense
determined under fair value method for all
awards, net of tax (1,841,000)
Pro-forma income from continuing operations $46,441,000
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic:
As reported $1.67
Pro-forma $1.67
Diluted:
As reported $1.52
Pro-forma $1.51

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans
are discussed further in Note 5.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue when there is
evidence of a sales agreement, the delivery of the
goods has occurred, the sales price is fixed or deter-
minable and the collectibility of the revenue is rea-
sonably assured. Sales are recorded upon shipment of
product to customers and transfer of title under
standard commercial terms. Allowances are recorded
for uncollectible aceounts receivable based upon the
age of the outstanding balance and the eredit stand-
ing of the related customer. The Company charges
off accounts receivable when it becomes apparent
that amounts will not be collected.

Comprehensive Income:

Comprehensive income primarily consists of net
income, pension and other postretirement benefit
adjustments, and cumulative foreign currency trans-
lation adjustments.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

In September 2006, the Finaneial Accounting
Standards Board (*FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”} No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements,” (“SFAS 1577),

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a market-
based framework or hierarchy for measuring fair

30 KAYDON CORPORATION FORM 10K

value, and expands disclosure about fair value mea-
surements. SFAS 157 is applicable whenever another
accounting pronouncement requires or permits assets
and liabilities to be measured at fair value. SFAS 157
does not expand or require any new fair value
measures; however the application of this statement
may change eurrent practice. The pronouncement is
effective for our fiscal year begihning January 1,
2008. SFAS 157 will require additional disclosure but
is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial condition, résults of operations
or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Cambinations,”
(“SFAS 141(R)”), and SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrol-
ling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements,
an amendment of ARB No. 51,” (“SFAS 160).
These pronouncements are required to be adopted
concurrently and are effective for business combina-
tion transactions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
Early adoption is prohibited, thus the provisions of
these pronouncements will be effective for the Com-
pany in fiscal 2009. The Company has not completed
its analysis of the potential impact of SFAS 141(R)
and SFAS 160 on its financial co'ndition, results of
operations or cash flows.

Proposed Accounting Pronouncements:

On August 31, 2007, the FASB issued for com-
ment proposed FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) APB
14-a, “Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments
That May Be Settled in Cagh upon Conversion
(Including Partial Cash Settlement)” for a 45-day
comment period that ended October 15, 2007. The
proposed guidance, if issued substantially as pro-
posed, would significantly impact'the accounting for
certain convertible debt instruments including the
Company’s 4% Contingent Convertible Senior Subor-
dinated Notes due 2023. The proposed FSP would
require issuers to separately account for the liability
and equity components of the instrument in a manner
that reflects the issuer's noneonvertible debt borrow-
ing rate when interest cost is recognized in subse-
quent periods. The proposed FSP would require
bifurcation of & component of the'debt, classification
of that component in equity, and then accretion of
the resulting discount on the debt as part of interest
expense being reflected in the income statement. The
financial statement impact would be non-cash. On
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Movember 26, 2007, the FASB announced that it
expected to begin redeliberating the proposed FSP in
2008.

NMOTE 2 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table reconciles the numerators
and denominators used in the calculations of basie

Legal Costs:

Estimated legal costs expected to be incurred in
eonnection with claims, lawsuits and environmental
matters are acerued in the consolidated financial
statements.

and diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations for each of the last three years:

2007 2006 2005
Numerators:
Numerators for basic earnings per share from continuing operations, ineome from
continuing operations $77,707,000  $69,508,000  $46,530,000
Interest and debt issuance costs amortization related to Contingent Convertible
_ Notes, net of taxes 5,953,000 5,953,000 6,074,000
Mumerators for diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $583,660,000  $75,451,000  $52,604,000
Denominators:
Denominators for basic earnings per share from continuing operations, weighted-average
commeon shares outstanding 27,694,000 27,829,000 27,800,000
Fotential dilutive shares resulting from stock options, restricted stock awards and phantom
stock units 130,000 80,000 47,000
Dilutive shares resulting from Contingent Convertible Notes 6,859,000 6,859,000 6,859,000
Denominators for diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 34,683,000 34,768,000 34,706,000
Earnings Per Share From Continuing Operations:
Basie $2.81 $2.50 $1.67
Diluted $2.41 $2.17 $1.52

During 2007 and 2006, certain options granted
to purchase shares of common stock were excluded
from the computation of diluted earnings per share
hecause the options’ exercise prices were greater

than the average market price of the common shares,

During 2007, options to purchase 15,000 shares at
an average price of $53.38 per share were excluded.
During 2006, options to purchase 14,000 shares at a
price of $41.59 per share were excluded. During
12005, all options were included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share because during the year
the options’ exercise prices were less than the aver-
nge market price of the common shares.

The Company has outstanding $200.0 million of
1% Contingent Convertible Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2023 (the “Notes”). The Notes are con-
vertible into a total of 6,858,710 shares of Company
zommon stock at a conversion price of $29.16 per
share, provided certain contingencies are met. The
Notes become convertible during any calendar quar-
zer if the closing sale price of Company common
stock is more than $34.99 for at least 20 trading
days in a period of 30 conseeutive trading days
anding on the last trading day of the preceding

calendar quarter, Based on this formula, holders will
be able to convert their Notes during the first quarter
of 2008. The Notes are discussed further in Note 4.

NOTE 3 ACQUISITIONS

On October 26, 2007, the Company acquired all
of the outstanding stock of Avon Bearings Corpora-
tion (“Avon”) in a cash transaction valued at
$54.9 million. Avon is a custom designer and manu-
facturer of high precision large diameter turntable
bearings. Avon also remanufactures bearings and
sells replacement bearings. Goodwill and other intan-
gible assets acquired aggregated $40.4 million. Avon
is included in the Friction Control Products segment
for segment reporting purposes.

On January 7, 2005, the Company acquired all
of the outstanding stock of Purafil, Inc. (“Purafil”)
for $42.7 million. Purafil manufactures and distrib-
utes gas-phase air filtration systems and media for
industrial and commercial applications throughout
the world, Goodwill and other intangible assets
acquired aggregated $36.7 million. Purafil is included
in “Other” businesses for segment reporting
purposes.
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company's 4% Contingent Convertible
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2023 (the “Notes”)
are convertible into a total of 6,858,710 shares of
Company common stock at a conversion price of
$29.16 per share, provided certain contingencies are
met. The Notes become convertible during any calen-
dar quarter if the closing sale price of Company
common stock is more than $34.99 for at least 20
trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading
days ending on the last trading day of the preceding
calendar quarter, Based on this formula, holders will
be able to convert their Notes during the first quarter
of 2008. The Notes may not be redeemed by the
Company until May 30, 2008, but are redeemable at
any time thereafter at par, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. The Notes are convertible into common
stock upon the issuance of a notice of redemption.

Holders of the Notes may require us to repur-
chase all or a portion of their Notes on May 23,
2008, 2013, and 2018, at 100 percent of the prineipal
amount of the Notes, plus accrued but unpaid inter-
est (including contingent interest and liquidated
damages, if any) to the date of repurchase, payable
in cash. If the holders of the Notes exercise their
right to require us to repurchase all or a portion of
their Notes on May 23, 2008, the Company intends
to refinance the obligation on a long-term basis with
its revolving credit facility. Because the Company has
the ability and intent to refinance the obligation on a
long-term basis, the Notes continue to be reported as
long-term debt at December 31, 2007.

In addition, the holders have the right to require
redemption of the Notes before the specified maturity
dates in the event of a change of control of the
Company, as identified in the Notes’ Indenture.

Interest expense on the Notes equaled $8.0 mil-
lion during each of 2007, 2006 and 2005, The Notes
bear interest at 4 percent per year, payable semi-
annually, and under certain circumstances beginning
in 2008, may bear additional contingent interest of
0.50 percent per year. Note issuance costs of approx-
imately $6.5 million are being amortized over a five-
year period. Amortization of Note issuance costs
equaled $1.3 million during each of 2007, 2006 and
2005. Amortization of Note issuance eosts is recorded
as a component of interest expense. Unamortized
Note issuance costs included in other assets equaled
$0.5 million and $1.8 million as of December 31,
2007 and 2006.
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The Company has entered into an agreement for
its senior credit facility with a syndicate of lenders.
The credit agreement provides ﬁor 3 $300.0 million
senior unsecured revolving credit facility. The credit
facility provides for borrowings and issuance of let-
ters of credit by the Company and its subsidiaries in
various currencies for general corporate purposes,
including acquisitions. The credit facility matures on
July 12, 2010 and is guaranteed by the Company and
certain of the Company’s domes‘tic subsidiaries. Inter-
est expense incurred on borrowings under the revolv-
ing credit facility will be based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate. The revolving credit facility
contains restrictive finaneial covenants on a consoli-
dated basis including leverage and coverage ratios,
utilizing measures of earnings and interest expense
as defined in the revolving credlt facility agreement.
Under the leverage ratio restrlctlon the Company
may not allow the ratio of total indebtedness, net of
domestic cash in excess of $15.0 million, to adjusted

“earnings before interest expense, taxes, depreciation

and amortization to exceed 3.5 to 1.0. Under the
interest coverage ratio restriction, the Company may
not allow the ratio of adjusted earnings before inter-
est expense and taxes to interest expense to be less
than 3.0 to 1.0. The Company is in compliance with
all restrictive covenants contained in the revolving
credit facility at December 31, 2007. After consider-
ation of the facility’s covenants and $4.9 million of
letters of credit issued under the! facility, the Com-
pany has available credit under its revolving credit
faeility of $295.1 million at Deceémber 31, 2007.

The Company’s outstanding long-term debt con-
sisted of its 4% Contingent Convertible Senior Subor-
dinated Notes due 2023 totalingl$200,000,000 at
hoth December 31, 2007 and 20086.

\
NOTE 5 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s 1999 Long Term Stock Incentive
Plan (“Incentive Plan”), provides for the issuance of
2,000,000 shares of Company common stock, plus an
additional 2,000,000 shares resultmg from certain
reacquisitions of shares by the Company, for stock-
based incentives in various forms. The Company’s
2003 Non-Employee Directors Equity Plan (“Direc-
tors Plan™) provides for the issuance of
300,000 shares of Company comimon stock in various
forms to non-employee members of the Company’s
Board of Directors. The Company has granted both
restricted stock awards and stock options pursuant to
its equity incentive plans. In addition, the Company's
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Director Deferred Compensation Plan (“Director
Deferred Plan™) provides for the issuanee of Com-
pany common stock to non-employee members of the
Company’s Board of Directors who elect to defer all

or a portion of their fees for services earned as a
member of the Board of Directors into a commeon
stock account.

A summary of restricted stock award information for 2007 is as follows:

Wtd. Avg. Grant

Restricted  Date Fair Value
Stock per Share
Outstanding at January 1, 2007 365,267 $28.98
Ciranted 182,980 $44.02
Vested {105,812) $27.69
Canceled (4,419) $35.73
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 438,016 $35.51

Pursuant to the Incentive Plan, the Company
grranted restricted stock awards for 179,980 shares,
#7,520 shares, and 122,440 shares of Company com-
mon stock during 2007, 2006 and 2005, to key
employees of the Company. Pursuant to the Direetors
Plan, the Company granted restricted stock awards
Tor 3,000 shares, 4,000 shares and 4,000 shares
during 2007, 2006 and 2005, to non-employee mem-
hers of the Company’s Board of Directors. During
2006, 5,549 shares were canceled and 102,131 shares
vested. During 2005, 19,803 shares were canceled
and 85,503 shares vested. The weighted-average fair
value per share of the restricted stock awards
granted, on the date of grant, was $34.54 in 2006,
and $30.62 in 2005,

Grant-date fair value of restricted stock awards
eguals the closing market price of Company common
stock on the date of grant. The net value of unrecog-
nized compensation cost related to unvested restricted
stock awards aggregated $9.7 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 and is expected to be amortized over a
‘weighted-average period of 3.6 years. The net value
of unrecognized compensation cost related to
‘nvested restricted stock awards aggregated $7.5 mil-
iion at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2005,
$7.6 million of unrecognized compensation cost was
recorded as a deduction from shareholders’ equity.
‘This 2005 amount was reclassified to paid-in capital.
Compensation cost related to restricted stock awards
equaled $5.6 million in 2007, $3.1 million in 2006,
and $2.7 million in 2005. Restricted stock awards
normally vest on January 5th or March 23rd of each
year, but they also vest upon the occurrence of
certain events, including the disability or death of a
grantee while employed at the Company, or, in
certain cireumstances, a change in control of the

Company under defined conditions. The total grant-
date fair value of restricted stock that vested during
2007, 2006, and 2005 was $2.9 million, $2.6 million,
and $2.0 million.

Restricted stock awards granted pursuant to the
Company’s equity incentive plans allow for continued
annual vesting if a grantee retires at or after the age
of 65, even though the grantee is no longer providing
services to the Company. For awards made prior to
January 1, 2006, compensation cost associated with
these restricted stock awards is being amortized rat-
ably over the awards’ normal five- to ten-year vest-
ing periods, or up to the date of actual retirement of
the grantee, when applicable. Concurrent with the
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards (“SFAS™) No, 123(R), “Share Baged Pay-
ment,” the Company changed this approach for new
awards granted after January 1, 20086, so that com-
pensation cost related to grantees who become retire-
ment eligible during the normal vesting period is
amortized ratably over the period from the grant date
to the date retirement eligibility is achieved. Compen-
sation expense is recognized immediately for awards
granted to retirement eligible employees,

Pursuant to the Director Deferred Plan, the
Company has provided for 12,338 shares,
10,689 shares, and 9,015 shares of Company com-
mon stock, known as phantom stock units, as of
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 which may be
issued at some future date as elected by the members
of the Board of Directors participating in this plan.
Annual compensation expense related to providing
for these phantom stoek units totaled $0.1 million in
each of 2007, 2006, and 2005.
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The Company applied the provisions of
SFAS No. 123(R) to its outstanding stock options as
of December 31, 2005, using a modified version of
prospective application. Under this transition method,
compensation expense is recognized on or after Janu-
ary 1, 2006 for the portion of outstanding stock
options for which the requisite service had not yet
been rendered, based on the grant-date fair value of

A summary of stock option information is as follows:

those stock options previously calculated under
SFAS No. 123 for the purpose of making pro-forma
disclosures. Compensation expense related to stock
options totaled $0.7 million in 2007, and $0.3 million
in 2006. For periods before January 1, 2006, Kaydon
has not restated the financial statements to reflect
compensation expense under the provisions of

SFAS No. 123.

2007 2006 2005
Wid.-Avg. Wed.-Avg. Wtd.-Avg.
Options  Ex. Price  Options  Ex. Price  Options  Ex. Price
Outstanding at Beginning of Year 75,250 $28.35 102,000 $25.04 138,500 $24.06
Granted 275,500 $43.73 14,000 $41.59 19,000 $27.51
Exercised {4,250) $23.32 (40,750) $24.62 {43,350) $23.09
Canceled — — — — ,  (12,150) $24.67
Outstanding at End of Year 346,500 $40.64 75,250 $28.35 102,000 $25.04
Exercisable at End of Year 33,900 $26.56 25,250 $24.76 ‘ 54,650 $24.60
Weighted-Avg. Fair Value of Options Granted $12.87 $14.18 [ $8.90
Weighted-Avg. Remaining Contractual Life (years):
Qutstanding at End of Year 8.5 6.4 4.7
Exercisable at End of Year 5.0 4.9 2.9

The exercise price of each option equals the
closing market price of Company common stock on
the date of grant. Options granted becorme exercis-
able at the rate of 10.0 percent or 20.0 percent per
year, commencing one year after the date of grant,
and options expire ten years after the date of grant.
The intrinsic value of options exercised in 2007, 2006
and 2005 totaled $0.1 million, $0.5 million and
$0.3 million. The intrinsic value of options outstand-
ing as of December 31, 2007 equaled $4.8 million,

and the intrinsic value of options exercisable as of
December 31, 2007 equaled $0.9 million, The fair
value of each option grant is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions,
which are updated to reflect current expectations of
the risk-free interest rate, expected dividend yield,
expected life, and using historical volatility to project
expected volatility:

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 5.1% 4.1%
Expected dividend yield 1.1% 2.0% 2.0%
Expected life 6 years 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility 23.7% 24.7% 26.1%

At December 31, 2007, 2,839,944 shares
remained available for grant under the Incentive
Plan, and 198,400 shares remained available for
grant under the Directors Plan. The number of
shares available for grant under the Director
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|
Deferred Plan is not limited in amount, other than by
the dollar value of the Directors’ annual compensation.
The Company’s practice is to purchase its shares on the
open market for issuance under its various equity
incentive plans.
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NOTE 6 SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS PLAN

On May 4, 2000, the Board of Directors of the
Company adopted a shareholders rights plan, which
attached one right to each share of Company com-
mon stock held by shareholders of record at the close
of business on June 12, 2000. If the rights become
exercisable, each registered holder will be entitled to
purchase from the Company additional eommon stock
having a value of twice the exercise price upon
payment-of the exercise price. The rights will become
exercisable only if a person or group of affiliated or
associated persons has acquired, or obtained the right
to acquire, 15 percent or more of the outstanding
shares of Company common stock. Each right will
entitle the shareholder to purchase one one-
thousandth of a share of a new series of preferred
stock at an exercise price of one hundred dollars
($100.00) per right. The rights will expire at the
close of business on May 4, 2010, unless earlier
radeemed by the Company.

NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors several defined contribu-
tion plans for various employee groups. Contributions
are determined as a percentage of each covered
employee’s salary and totaled $1.1 million, $1.0 mil-
lion and $0.7 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The Company maintains several defined benefit
pension plans, which cover the majority of all
1J.8. employees. Benefits paid under these plans are
based generally on employees’ years of service and
compensation during the final years of employment.

The Company provides certain retiree health
care and life insurance benefits covering certain

U.S. employees. Employees are generally eligible for
benefits upon retirement or long-term disability and
completion of a specified number of years of credited
service. These benefits are subject to cost-sharing
provisions and other limitations. The Company does
not pre-fund these benefits and has the right to
modify or terminate certain of these benefits in the
future.

The Company accrues for the cost of providing
postretirement benefits for medical, dental and life
insurance coverage over the active service period of
the employee.

The Company uses a September 30 measure-
ment date for its plans.

Kaydon adopted the recognition and disclosure
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 158, “Employers’ Account-
ing for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretire-
ment Plans” on December 31, 2006. SFAS No. 158
requires plan sponsors of defined benefit pension and
other postretirement benefit plans (collectively,
“post-retirement benefit plans”) to measure the fair
value of plan assets and benefit obligations as of the
plan sponsor’'s fiscal year-end effective for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2008. The Company
will adopt this measurement provision at Decem-
ber 31, 2008. The adoption of the measurement date
provision will result in an adjustment to retained
earnings to recognize the net periodic benefit cost for
the period between September 30, 2007, and Decem-
ber 31, 2007. The effect of the adoption of the
measurement date provision is not expected to have a
material effect on our financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows.
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Obligations and Funded Status:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year

$(99,984,000) $(98,929,000) $(1‘3,819,000) $(14,594,000)

Service cost (2,770,000) (3,037,000) (365,000) {368,000)
Interest cost {5,338,000) (5,574,000) {302,000) (812,000)
Plan amendments (74,000) — — —
Actuarial gain 4,432,000 3,130,000 3,882,000 1,213,000
Benefits paid 4,703,000 4,426,000 , 685,000 742,000
Benefit obligation, September 30 (99,531,000)  {99,984,000)  (10,419,000)  (18,819,000)
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 66,105,000 58,380,000 . — —
Actual return on plan assets 10,275,000 5,585,000 - —
Company contributions 27,700,000 6,566,000 685,000 742,000
Plan participanis’ contributions — — - 299,000 336,000
Benefits paid (4,703,000) (4,426,000) '(984,000) {1,078,000)
Fair value of plan assets, September 30 99,377,000 66,105,000 ) — —
Funded status, September 30 (154,000)  (33,879,000) (10,419,000} (13,819,000)
Contributions for fourth quarter 282,000 1,368,000 | 176,000 181,000
Net asset (liability}, December 31 3 128,000 $(32,511,000) $(10_,243,000) $(13,638,000)
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets Consist of:

Other asset - non-current $ 17,432,000 — —_ —

Long-term liability $ (6,638,000} $(31,942,000) $ (9,612,000) $(12,744,000)

Current liability $ (666,000} $ (569,000) & (631,000} $  (894,000)

Deferred tax liability, net $ 38,245,000 $ 7,079,000 $ (5,874,000} § (4,757,000)

Aceumulated other comprehensive income:
Prior service cost {credit}, net of tax
Net actuarial (gain) loss, net of tax

49,000 § (5,988,000} § (7,088,000)

$ 74,000 $
$ 11,750,000  $ (6,900,000} $ (5,279,000)

$ 5,333,000

As of September 30, 2007 all of the Company’s
qualified defined benefit pension plans had plan
assets in excess of the accumulated benefit obliga-
tions. As of September 30, 2006 all of the Company’s
defined benefit pension plans had accumulated bene-
fit obligations in excess of plan assets, The projected
benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation,
and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans
were $99.5 million, $91.3 million, and $99.4 million,
respectively, as of September 30, 2007 and
$100.0 million, $91.7 million, and $66.1 million,
respectively, as of September 30, 2006,
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Included in the above table is a non-qualified
supplemental pension plan covering certain employ-
ees. This non-qualified pension plan provides for ben-
efits in addition to those provided by the qualified
plans. The actuarial present valuefss of the projected
benefit obligation and the accumulated benefit obli-
gation related to this non-qualified pension plan both
totaled $7.6 million at September 30, 2007 and both
totaled $6.9 million at September 30, 2006. Exclud-
ing this non-qualified plan, the Company’s qualified
pension plans were fully funded at September 30,
2007, and were underfunded by $26.9 million at
September 30, 2006. :
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Pension Benefits
2006

2007 2005

Components of Net
Periodic Benefit
Cost:

Service cost $ 2,770,000 $ 3,037,000 $ 2,495,000

Interest cost 5,838,000 5,574,000 5,090,000
Expected return on plan
assets (5,461,000) (4,672,000} (4,332,000}
Amortization of:
Unrecognized net
prior service cost 33,000 200,000 238,000
__Unrecognized net loss 1,020,000 1,449,000 877,000
Net periodic benefit
cost $ 4,200,000 $ 5,588,000 § 4,368,000

Net periodic benefit cost for the non-qualified
supplemental pension plan was $0.3 million, $0.4 mil-
lion and $0.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Postretirement Benefits

2007 2006 2005
Components of Net
Periodic Benefit
Cost (Income):
Service cost $ 365000 § 368,000 § 444,000
Interest cost 802,000 812,000 886,000

Amortization of:
Unrecognized net
prior service credit
Unrecognized net
gain (486,000)
Net periodic benefit
cost (income)

(1,759,000) (1,769,000} (1,437,000)

(387,000) (703,000}

$(1,078,000) & (976,000} $ (810,000}

For measurement purposes, a 7.4 percent annual
rate of increase for participants under 65 years of
age and an 8.0 percent annual rate of increase for

Additional Information:

participants over 65 years of age in the per capita
cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for
2007. The health care cost trend rates assumed for
2008 are 6.6 percent for participants under 65 years
of age and 7.0 percent for participants over 65 years
of age. The rates were assumed to decrease gradually
to 5.0 percent by 2010 and remain at that level
thereafter. The assumed dental cost trend rate for
2007 and all future years is 5.0 percent. Assuimed
health care cost trend rates have a significant effect
on the amounts reported for the postretirement
health care plans. A 1.0 percent increase in the
assumed health care cost trend rates would have
increased the net service cost and interest cost by
$0.1 million during 2007 and would have increased
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at
September 30, 2007 by $1.1 million. A 1.0 percent
decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rates
would have decreased the net service cosi and inter-
est cost by $0.1 million during 2007 and would have
decreased the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation at September 30, 2007 by $0.9 million.

The amounts in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income expected to be recognized as components
of net periodic benefit cost in 2008 include the
amortization of $1.7 million and $0.9 million of the
prior service credit and unrecognized net actuarial
gain related to the other postretirement benefit plans.
The amounts in accumulated other eomprehensive
income expected to be recognized as components of
net periodic benefit cost in 2008 are less than
$0.1 million related to the pension plans.

Postretirement

Pension Bepefits Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at
September 30:
Discount rate — qualified pension plans and postretirement benefit plans 6.50% 6.00% 6.50% 6.00%
Discount rate — nen-qualified pension plan 6.25% 5.75% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation inerease 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost
for years ended December 31:
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75% 6.00% 5.75%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
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In developing the discount rate assumption used
to determine the pensien and postretirement benefit
obligations at September 30, 2007 and 2006, the
Company calculated the cash flows represented by
the projected benefit obligations of three pension
plans constituting greater than 90 percent of the
Company’s pension plans’ total projected benefit obli-
gation. These cash flows were discounted at corre-
sponding interest rates derived from a hypothetical
yield curve constructed using the top quartile of high
rated (Aa or AA) non-callable bonds with at least
$150.0 million of par value outstanding. The equiva-
lent weighted-average discount rate is calculated by
imputing the interest rate that equates the total
present value with the stream of future cash flows.
The discount rate applicable to the Company’s three
largest pension plans was also used for all qualified
pension plans and the Company’s postretirement ben-
efit plans. In 2007 and 2006, a similar, independent
development of the discount rate assumption was
used for the non-qualified pension plan. Prior to
using the yield curve approach, the discount rate
assumptions used for the pension and postretirement
net periodic benefit costs in 2005 were based on
investment yields available on long-term corporate
bonds.

The September 30, 2007 and 2006 pension and
postretirement benefit obligations and the pension
and postretirement net periodic benefit costs in 2007
and 2006 were computed using the RP-2000 Com-
bined Healthy Mortality table. The 1983 Group
Annuity Mortality table was used to determine the
pension and postretirement net periodic benefit costs
in 2005.

The Company determines the overall expected
long-term rate of return for plan assets by evaluating
the historical and expected returns of the individual
asset classes comprising the total plan assets. For
individual categories of equity securities, historical
total and real rates of return are considered, together
with inflation and overall market factors including
dividend yield, earnings growth, changes in price/
earnings ratios and volatility of returns. For various
fixed income asset categories expected long-term
returns are determined after consideration of current
yields on fixed income securities, inflation, historical
yields relative to benchmarks, and long-term default
rates. For other asset classes, including real estate,
expected long-term returns are determined through
consideration of certain factors, which may include
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historical returns, dividend yields, inflation, bench-
mark returns and net asset values.

The Company’s investment program objective is
to achieve a rate of return on plan assets which will
fund the plan liabilities and provide for required
benefits while avoiding undue exposure to risk and
increases in funding requirements. Risk tolerance is
established through consideration of plan liabilities,
plan funded status and the Company’s financial
condition. ]

The Company's investment policy for plan assets
utilizes a diversified blend of equity, fixed income
and real estate investments to maximize the expected
return on plan assets at acceptable levels of risk.

A summary of target and actual allocations of
plan assets is as follows:

Plan Assets at September 30

2007 2007 2006
Target ' Actual Actual
Allocation Allocation Allocation

Asset Category: )
65% 64% 62%

Domestic equity

Fixed income 20% 20% 16%
International equity 10% 10% 12%
Real estate 5% 5% 6%
Cash —_ 1% 4%

Total 100% 100% 100%

Equity investments are funﬁer diversified
between growth and value categories, and fixed
income investments are diversified between core and
high yield investments. All actual allocations are
within the allowable ranges in thé investment policy.

Cash Flows:

The following are expected net benefit
payments:

Pension  Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Year ending December 31,

2008 $ 5,254,000 $ 758,000
2009 $ 5,735,000 $ 790,000
2010 $ 5,956,000 $ 823,000
2011 $ 6,108,000 $ 864,000
2012 $ 6,424,000 $ 916,000
2013-2017 $36,330,000  $5,595,000

The Company has included in the postretirement
benefits, shown in the table above, the estimated
future Medicare Part D direct subsidy payments
available under the Medicare Prescription Drug,

b
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Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. The
expected future subsidies are as follows:

Postretirement
Benefits
Year ending December 31,

2008 $ 127,000
2009 $ 148,000
2010 $ 167,000
2011 $ 134,000
2012 $ 213,000
2013-2017 $1,451,000

During 2007, the Company contributed
$26.1 million to its qualified pension plans, resulting
in the plans being fully funded. Therefore, the Com-
pany does not expect to contribute to these plans
during 2008.

NOTE 8 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Total minimum rentals payable under operating
leases that have initial or remaining noncancellable
lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31,
2007 are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2008 $2,073,000
2009 $1,975,000
2010 $1,733,000
2011 $1,491,000
2012 $1,395,000
Thereafter $4,708,000

Aggregate rental expense charged to continuing
operations was $1.7 million in each of 2007, 2008,
and 2005.

NOTE 9 INCOME TAXES

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the expected future tax conge-
quences of events that have been ineluded in the
consolidated financial statements or tax returns.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference between the
consolidated financial statement and tax basis of
assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to
reverse.

The ecomponents of income from continuing oper-
ations before income taxes are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Domestic $ 98,176,000 $ 89,327,000 $55,700,000
Foreign 21,586,000 16,062,000 13,644,000

$119,762,000 $105,379,000 $69,344,000

The provision for income taxes on income from
continuing operations consisted of the following:

2007 2006 2009

Current;
U.8. Federal $16,007,000 $20,033,000 $12,757,000
State 1,283,000 1,145,000 534,000
Foreign 6,542,000 4,804,000 3,972,000
23,832,000 25,982,000 17,263,000

Deferred:
U.8. Federal 16,324,000 8,226,000 4,298,000
State 1,155,000 704,000 438,000
Foreign 744,000 959,000 815,000
18,223,000 9,889,000 5,551,000

$42,055,000 $35,871,000 $22,814,000

The following is a reconciliation of the U.S. fed-
eral statutory income tax rate to the Company’s
effective tax rate for continuing operations:

2007 2006 2005

U.8S. federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State taxes, net of federal benefit 2.0 1.5 1.1
U.S. federal tax benefit of extraterritorial

income exclusion — (0.4) (1.5)
U.S. federal tax benefit of domestic

production activities deduction (1.0) (0.5) (0.7}
Differences in income taxes on foreign

earnings, losses and remittances (0.4) (0.7) (L&}
Other, net (0.5) (0.9) 0.6

Effective tax rate 35.1% 34.0% 32.9%

The 2006 and 2005 effective income tax rates
reflect reductions to the tax provisions related to
deductions recognized for financial reporting pur-
poses, after examinations by certain taxing authori-
ties, or after the expiration of applicable review
periods, totaling $1.7 million and $1.1 million,
respectively.
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The Financial Aecounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes™ (“FIN 48”) prescribes
a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measure-
ment of a tax position taken in a tax return, and
provides guidance regarding subsequent derecogni-
tion of a tax position, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim perieds, and disclo-
sure. FIN 48 became effective January 1, 2007, The
adoption of FIN 48 was immaterial to the Company.

The Company has liabilities recorded for unrec-
ognized tax benefits totaling $2.8 million as of
December 31, 2007, all of which would affect the
effective tax rate. It is the Company’s policy to
inchide interest and penalties incurred due to under-
payment or late payment of income taxes due to a
taxing authority on a net-of-tax basis as a compo-
nent of income tax expense. The Company has
recorded $0.8 million in liabilities for tax related
interest and penalties in its consolidated financial
statements, as of December 31, 2007. The Company
does not expect that the total amounts of unrecog-
nized tax benefits will significantly change within the
next twelve months.

The following is a reconciliation of the total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits from January 1,
2007 to December 31, 2007:

Unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007 $2,563,000
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits as a result of:
Tax positions taken in the current period 388,000
Tax positions taken in a prior period 49,000
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits as a result of:
Tax positions taken in a prior period (27,000)
Lapse of the applicable statute of limitations (169,000)
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007 $2,804,000

The Company, or one of its subsidiaries, oper-
ates and files income tax returns in the United
States, various states, and foreign jurisdictions. For-
eign jurisdictions significant to the Company include
Germany and the United Kingdom. With limited
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal tax examinations for years before 2004,
state examinations for years before 2002, German
tax examinations for years before 2004, or United
Kingdom tax examinations for years before 2005.

The tax effect and type of significant temporary
differences by component which gave rise to the net
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deferred tax asset (liability) as of December 31,
2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:

Postretirement and
postemployment benefit
obligations

Financial accruals and reserves not

$ 5,910,000 $18,466,000

currently deductible 3,988,000 3,886,000
Inventory basis differences 5,082,000 5,315,000
Foreign operating loss

carryforwards 454,000 536,000
Federal tax credit carryforwards 2,600,000 1,155,000
Other 348,000 98,000

18,382,000 29,456,000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Plant and equipment basis
differences
Intangibles
Additional interest deduction on
contingent convertible notes

(9,976,000} (9,540,000}
(7,451,000} (5,363,000)

(18,449,000 (13,823,000)
(35,876,000) (28,726,000)
$(17,494,000) $ 730,000

Net deferred tax asset (liability)

The Company had available foreign net operat-
ing loss carryforwards of $0.4 million ($1.6 million
pre-tax) and $0.5 million ($1.8 million pre-tax) at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. In addition, at Decem-
ber 31, 2007 the Company had federal tax credit
carryforwards of $2.6 million, which expire beginning
in 2013. The Company believes it is more likely than
not that the tax benefits of these federal tax credit
carryforwards will be realized before they expire.
Tax benefits of foreign operating loss carryforwards
and federal tax credit carryforwards are evaluated on
an ongoing basis, including a review of the historical
and projected future operating results, the eligible
carryforward period, and other circumstances.

The additional interest deduction on the contin-
gent convertible notes may have to be recaptured for
tax purposes, in part or in whole, if the notes are
redeemed or surrendered for conversion at an amount
less than the tax acereted value. Should this happen,
depending on other factors, tax payments may
increase and the deferred tax liability provided for
would be eliminated through an adjustment to the
Company’s shareholders’ equity, thereby not affect-
ing current tax accounts.

The net deferred tax asset recorded as an other
current asset was $8.8 million and $6.4 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. The net deferred tax
liability was $26.3 million and $5.6 million at
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December 31, 2007 and 2006. Undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries were $42.9 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2007. The Company has not provided for
11.S. income taxes on these undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries as these earnings are intended to
be permanently reinvested. The amounts subject to
[1.8. taxation upon remittance of these earnings as
dividends would be partially offset by available for-
eign tax credits.

NOTE 10 GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a need,
tests the carrying amounts of goodwill and indefi-
nite-lived intangible assets for impairment.

The Company identifies impairment of goodwill
by comparing the fair value of each of its reporting
units with the reporting unit’s carrying amount. The
fair value of each of the reporting units is derived
from an estimate of discounted future cash flows
including an estimate for terminal value. In 2007, an
11.5 percent discount rate was utilized, and a growth
assumption of 2.0 percent in perpetuity to calculate
terminal value. Potential goodwill impairment is iden-
vified if a reporting unit’s earrying amount is more
than a reporting unit’s fair value. If this occurs,
normally a third-party valuation specialist is utilized
o assist the Company in determining the implied fair
value of the reporting unit's goodwill. The amount of
any actual impairment loss is calculated by compar-
ing the implied fair value of the reporting unit's

goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting
unit’s goodwill,

Certain trademarks are the Company’s only
indefinite-lived intangible assets. The Company iden-
tifies impairment of these trademarks by comparing
their fair value to their carrying amounts. The fair
values of the trademarks are calculated based on
estimates of discounted future cash flows related to
the net amount of royalty expenses avoided due to
the existence of the trademarks.

During 2007, the Company's goodwill impair-
ment testing revealed that the estimated fair values
of all of its reporting units exceeded their carrying
values, which indicated no goodwill impairment. Also
during 2007, trademarks were tested for impairment
with no impairment loss being realized.

During 2007, the Company acquired Avon Bear-
ings Corporation for $54.9 million, net of cash
received. A portion of the purchase price was allo-
cated to various intangible assets including, $9.5 mil-
lion to customer relationships, $3.3 million to
backlog, and $0.2 million to trademarks, and
$27.4 million was recognized as goodwill. The intan-
gible assets are being amortized over their respective
useful lives. The goodwill is being reported as part of
the Company’s Friction Control Products reporting
segment and will not be amortized, but will be
subjeet to annual impairment testing.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are
as follows:

Friction Velocity

Control Control Sealing

Products Products Products Other Total
Balance as of January 1, 2006 $30,136,000  $43,200,000 $186,000  $43,646,000 $117,168,000
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes 2,316,000 — — — 2,316,000
Balance as of December 31, 2006 332,452,000 $43,200,000 $186,000  $43,646,000 $119,484,000
Goodwill acquired 27,366,000 — — — 27,366,000
Goodwill disposed (315,000} — — — (315,000}
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes 387,000 — — — 387,000
Balanee as of December 31, 2007 $59,890,000  $43,200,000 $186,000 $43,646,000 $146,922,000
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Other intangible assets are summarized as follows:

2007 2006
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amortized Intangible Assets Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer relationships and lists $28,194,000  $ 9,567,000  $18,694,000 $7,273,000
Patents and developed technology 6,379,000 2,286,000 6,299,000 1,596,000
Backlog 3,300,000 114,000 — —
Distributor agreements 374,000 125,000 374,000 87,000
Product names 320,000 99,000 320,000 64,000
Trademarks 200,000 18,000 — —
$38,767,000  $12,209,000  $25,687,000 $9,020,000

The intangible assets are being amortized at
accelerated rates or on a straight-line basis, which-
ever is appropriate, over their respective useful lives.
The weighted-average original useful life for cus-
tomer relationships and lists is 13.6 years, and for
patents and developed technology is 13.3 years.
Backlog is being amortized over three years.

2007 2006
Carrying Carrying
Unamortized Intangible Assets Amount  Amount

Trademarks $4,604,000 $4,604,000

Aggregate Intangible Assets Amortization Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2006 $3,078,000
For the year ended December 31, 2007 $3,189,000
Estimated Intangible Assets Amortization Expense

For the year ending December 31, 2008 $5,429,000
For the year ending December 31, 2009 $4,310,000
For the year ending December 31, 2010 $3,567,000
For the year ending December 31, 2011 $2,256,000
For the year ending December 31, 2012 $1,974,000

NOTE 11 BUSINESS SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Company operates through operating seg-
ments for which separate financial information is
available, and for which operating results are evalu-
ated regularly by the Company’s chief operating
decision maker in determining resource allocation and
assessing performance. Certain of the operating seg-
ments have similar economic characteristics, as weil
as other common attributes, including nature of the
products and production processes, distribution pat-
terns and classes of customers. The Company aggre-
gates these operating segments for reporting
purposes. Certain other operating segments do not
exhibit the common attributes mentioned above and,
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therefore, information about them is reported sepa-
rately. Still other operating segments do not meet
the quantitative threshelds for separate disclosure
and their information is combined and disclosed as
“Other.”

The Company has three reportable segments
and other operating segments engaged in the manu-
facture and sale of the following:

Friction Control Products - complex compo-
nents used in specialized robotics, medical, aerospace,
defense, security, electronic, material handling, con-
struction, alternative-energy, and other industrial
applications. Products include anti-friction bearings,
split roller bearings, and specialty balls.

Velocity Control Products - complex compo-
nents used in specialized robotics, material handling,
machine tool, medical, amusement and other indus-
trial applications. Products include industrial shock
absorbers, safety shock absorbers, velocity controls,
gas springs and rotary dampers.

Sealing Products - complex and standard ring
and seal products used in demanding industrial, aero-
space and defense applications. Products include
engine rings, sealing rings and shaft seals.

Other - filter elements and liquid and gas-phase
air filtration systems, metal alloys, machine tool com-
ponents, presses, dies and benders used in a variety
of industrial applications.

The accounting policies of the operating seg-
ments are the same as those described in Note 1.
Segment performance is evaluated based on segment
operating income, which includes an estimated provi-
sion for state income taxes, and segment assets.

Items not allocated to segment operating income
include certain amortization and corporate
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administrative expenses, and other amounts. Corpo-
rate assets consist of cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments, certain prepaid expenses,
non-current pension assets, other assets and fixed

assets. The selling price for transfers between oper-
ating segments and geographic areas is generally
based on cost plus a mark-up.

2007 2006 2005
Net sales
Friction Control Products
External customers $261,447,000 $233,843,000 $194,566,000
Intersegment - continuing operations 205,000 187,000 126,000
Intersegment — discontinued operations — — 302,000
261,652,000 234,030,000 194,994,000
Velocity Control Products
External customers 63,912,000 56,733,000 53,839,000
Intersegment - continuing operations — — (1,000)
63,912,000 56,733,000 53,838,000
Sealing Products
External customers 46,831,000 42,085,000 38,632,000
Intersegment - continuing operations (144,000) {89,000) (88,000)
46,687,000 41,996,000 38,544,000
Other
External customers 79,192,000 71,331,000 67,219,000
Intersegment - continuing operations {61,000} (98,000) {37,000)
79,131,000 71,233,000 67,182,000
Total consolidated net sales $451,382,000 $403,992,000 $354,558,000
2007 2006 2005
Operating income
Friction Control Products $ 74,161,000 $ 67,949,000 $49,502,000
Velocity Control Products 16,193,000 12,934,000 12,162,000
Sealing Products 8,546,000 6,411,000 5,944,000
Other 10,774,000 6,462,000 4,616,000
Total segment operating income 109,674,000 93,756,000 72,224,000
State income tax provision included in segment operating income 3,384,000 2,955,000 1,862,000
Items not allocated to segment operating income (1,795,000) 1,969,000 (3,910,000)
Interest expense (9,552,000)  (9,654,000)  (9,579,000)
Interest income 18,051,000 16,253,000 8,747,000
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $119,762,000 $105,379,000  $69,344,000

Operating income of the Friction Control Products reporting segment in 2007 included a $5.0 million gain

on the sale of a component of the segment.
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2007 2006 2005
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets
Friction Control Products $ 8,245,000 $ 7,559,000 $ 6,946,000
Veloeity Control Products 1,690,000 1,655,000 1,773,000
Sealing Products 987,000 997,000 946,000
Other 3,619,000 3,608,000 3,685,000
Corporate 461,000 493,000 481,000
Total consolidated depreciation and amortization of intangible assets of
continuing operations $15,002,000 $14,312,000 $13,831,000
2007 2006 2005
Additions to net property, plant and equipment
Friction Control Products $46,837,000 $22)164,000 § 8,322,000
Velocity Control Products 2,411,000 793,000 940,000
Sealing Products 3,190,000 778,000 612,000
Qther 1,369,000 2,279,000 2,042,000
Corporate 266,000 280,000 644,000
Total consolidated additions to net property, plant and equipment of continuing operations  $54,073,000  $26,294,000  $12,560,000
2007 2006
Total assets
Friction Control Products $286,605,000 $177,061,000
Velocity Gontrol Products 95,378,000 85,759,000
Sealing Products 24,218,000 21,445,000
Other 91,940,000 94,003,000
Corporate 288,424,000 359,288,000
Total consolidated assets $786,565,000  $737,556,000

Geographic Information:

The Company attributes net sales to different
geographic areas on the basis of the location of the
customer. Net sales and long-lived tangible assets of

continuing operations by geographic area are listed
below. Long-lived tangible assets primarily include
net property, plant and equipment and pension
related deposits:

2007 2006 2005
Net Sales
United States $308,284,000  $276,129,000 $237,698,000
Germany 42,007,000 38,763,000 36,944,000
(Other Countries 101,091,000 29,100,000 79,916,000
Total $451,382.000 $403,992,000 $354,55%8,000
Long-lived Tangible Assets
United States $135,862,000 $88,355,000 $74,236,000
Other Countries 10,439,000 7,826,000 6,424,000
Total $146,301,000 $96,181,000 $80,660,000
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NOTE 12 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On July 26, 2005 the Company sold substan- The 2005 operating results of the Power and
tially all of the operating assets and liabilities of its Data Transmission Products segment up to the date
Fower and Data Transmission Products segment for of disposition are presented in the following table:

$71.4 million cash, resulting in a pre-tax gain of

$41.0 million, or $0.73 per share on a diluted basis Net Sa].es . $22,097,000
after tax. In accordance with Statement of Financial Operating income $ 2,974,000
A ing Standards No. 144, “Accounting for th Gain on disposal 40,969,000
I..(:cm_mtmg a]r; dards 1 Of , Ucczu; ng 2r : e Provision for income taxes (16.584.000)
mpairment or Disposal o Long~ ve ssets,” the Income from discontinued operations $27,359,000

operating results of this segment, including the
aforementioned gain on sale, are reported as discon-
tinued operations.

NMOTE 13 UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data

Net sales $106,807 $101,505 $113,391 $102,664 $107,365 $ 99,676 $123,729  $100,147
Gross profit 44,338 41,543 47,968 43,597 43,296 40,881 48,198 41,405
Net income $ 18230 $ 16580 $ 19643 $ 17704 $ 17137 $ 17558 & 22,697' § 17,657
Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $750,370  $684,947 $765,549  $699,280 $755,962  $710,743  $786,565  $737,556
Cash and cash equivalents, and

short-term investments 375,164 327,582 874,142 343338 350,249 340,525 286,993 370,789
Total debt 200,000 200,050 200,000 200,034 200,000 200,017 200,000 200,000

Cash Flow Data
Net cash from operating activities § 18,118 $ 15052 § 19,094 § 22,846 § 10,150 §$ 17,453 & 26,897 § 34,509

Capital expenditures, net 7,384 4,106 12,796 3,474 16,821 7,845 17,072 10,869
Depreciation and amortization of
intangible assets 3,579 3,635 3,681 3,596 3,565 3,452 4,177 3,629
Per Share Data
Earmings per share - basic $ 065 $ o060 $ 071 $ 064 $ 062 ¢ 063 $ 08 $ 063
Earnings per share — diluted 0.57 0.52 0.61 0.55 0.54 0.55 0.70(1 0.55
Dividends declared per share 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.15 0.12 0.15 0.12

(1) Ineludes the after tax effect, $3.1 million or $0.09 per share on a diluted basis, of the pre-tax $5.0 million gain on the sale of a
eomponent of the Friction Control Products reporting segment.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Kaydon’s management is responsible for estab-
lishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls
and procedures, as defined under Rule 18a-15(e) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As of the end
of the period covered by this report, the Company
performed an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of the Company’s manage-
ment, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Compa-
ny’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon,
and as of the date of that evaluation, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the Company’s diselosure controls and
procedures were effective {0 ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the
reports that it files or submits to the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the
Commission’s rules and forms, and that such infor-
mation i accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including its Chief Execu-
tive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropri-
ate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. No changes were made to the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f} under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934) during the last fiscal quarter that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Management's report on internal control over
financial reporting, and Emnst & Young LLP's report
on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting are included in Item 8 of this Report and
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding executive officers
required by Item 10 is set forth as a Supplementary
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Item at the end of Part I hereof (pursuant to
Instruction 8 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K}.
Other information required by this Item is included in
the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company, which will be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission prior
to April 4, 2008 and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is included
in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company, which will be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission prior
to April 4, 2008 and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 is included
in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company, which will be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission prior
to April 4, 2008 and is incorporated herein by refer-
ence. The Company also incorporates herein by refer-
ence the Equity Compensation Plan Information
contained in Item 5 of this Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND
RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is included
in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company, which will be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission prior
to April 4, 2008 and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND
SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is included
in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders of the Company, which will be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission prior
to April 4, 2008 and is incorporated herein by
reference.




PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) 1. Financial Statements

E chibit
' Number

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are included in Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data’:

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm — Internal Control
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Financial Statements
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following Financial Statement Schedule of the Company is filed with this Report:
II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Report. Those exhibits with an asterisk (*) designate
the Company’s management eontracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed
herewith,

Certain of the following exhibits have been previously filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission by the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 and the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Such exhibits are identified by the parenthetical references
following the listing of each such exhibit and are incorporated herein by reference. The Company’s
Commission file number is 1-11333.

Description of Document.

21

10.1*

10.1.1*

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 26, 2005 by and among the Company, Kaydon Corporation Limited, Kaydon Acquisition
IX, Inc., Moog, Inc., Moog Controls Limited and Moog Canada Corporation (previously filed as Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed July 27, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 7, 2005 by and among the Company, the shareholders of Purafil, Inc. and Purafil
Europa B.V. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 10, 2095 and incorporated
herein by reference)

Second Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

By-Laws of the Company, as amended through October 16, 2006 (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed October 17, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference)

Rights Agreement dated as of May 4, 2000 between the Company and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent
(previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 24, 2000 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Notice Latter dated June 23, 2000 from the Company to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company regarding the change of the
Rights Agent under the Company’s Rights Agreement dated as of May 4, 2000 (previously filed as Exhibit 4.3 to Amendment No. 2 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference)
Indenture dated as of May 23, 2003 between the Company and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (previcusly filed as Exhibit 4.1 to
Amendment No, 1 to the Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/ A for the quarter ended June 28, 2003 and incorporated herein
by reference)

Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated August 18, 2003 by and among the Company and SunTrust Bank (previously filed as Exhibit 4.3
to the Company’s $-3 Registration Statement filed August 18, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

Supplemental Indenture No. 2 dated November 12, 2003 by and among the Company and SunTrust Bank (previously filed as
Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's 3-3/A Registration Statement filed November 13, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)
Kaydon Corporation Employee Stock Ownership and Thrift Plan, as amended and restated February 19, 2002 (previously filed as
Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s 5-8 Registration Statement filed October 8, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

Fifth Amendment to the Kaydon Corporation Employee Stock Ownership and Thrift Plan dated November 1, 2004 (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1.1 to the Company’s Annua! Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 81, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference)
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Exhibit
Number

Deseription of Document

10.1.2*

10.1.3*

10.1.4*

10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
10.4.1*

10.4.2*
10.4.3*
10.4.4*
10.5*
10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11

10.12*
10.13*

10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10,18+
12

21

23
31.1
31.2

32
99

Sixth Amendment to the Kaydon Corporation Employee Stock Ownership and Thrift Plan dated December 21, 2005 (previously filed
as Exhibit 10.1.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Seventh Amendment to the Kaydon Corporation Employee Stock Ownership and Thrift Plan dated December 21, 2006 (previously
filed as Exhibit 10.1.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and incorporated herein
by reference)

Eighth Amendment to the Kaydon Corporation Employee Stock Ownership and Thrift Plan dated June 5, 2007 {previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Kaydon Corperation Executive Management Bonus Program, amended and restated effective February 14, 2008 (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed February 27, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)
Kaydon Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference)

Kaydon Corporation 1999 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan, amended and restated effective October 25, 2007

Forms of restricted stock agreement and non-qualified stock option agreement to be entered into by the Company and award
recipients on and after Aprit 30, 1999 under the Kaydon Corporation 1999 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan (previously filed as
Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 22, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference)
Restricted Stock Agreement dated March 23, 2007 between the Company and James O’Leary

Restricted Stock Agreement dated March 23, 2007 between the Company and James O’'Leary

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated March 23, 2007 between the Company and James O’Leary

Kaydon Gorporation Director Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated effective October 25, 2007

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated September 28, 1998 between the Company and Brian P. Campbell (previously
filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated May 31, 2007 between the Company and John F. Broeei {previously filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated May 31, 2007 between the Company and John R. Emling (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated May 31, 2007 between the Company and Kenneth W. Crawford (previously filed
as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference )

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated May 31, 2007 between the Company and Peter C. DeChants (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 12, 2005 among the Company, the subsidiary borrowers from time to time
party thereto, the alternate eurrency borrowers from time to time party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Syndication Agent, and Bank of America, N.A., Comerica Bank and SunTrust Bank,
as Documentation Agents, J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., as Joint Lead Arranger and Sole Book Runner and Wachovia Capital Markets,
LLG, as Joint Lead Arranger {previously filed as Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 15, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference)

Kaydon Corporation 2003 Non-Employee Directors Equity Plan, amended and restated effective October 25, 2007

Kaydon Corporation Non-Employee Directors Compensation (previously filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference}

Kaydon Corporation Executive Medical Reimbursement Insurance Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

Employment Agreement, amended effective February 14, 2008, between the Company and James O’Leary (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 20, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference)
Consulting Agreement dated November 29, 2007 between the Company and John F. Brocei {previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 3, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference)

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated January 28, 2008 between the Company and Debra K. Crane

Change in Control Compensation Agreement dated December 8, 2007 between the Company and Anthony T. Behrman
Statement Re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Independent Registered Public Aceounting Firm

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to Rule 181-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13850, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of October 26, 2007 by and among the Company, the shareholders of Avon Bearings Corporation
and Patrick Walsh, as Sellers’ Representative
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
zuthorized.

KAYDON CORPORATION

Date: February 27, 2008

By: /s/ JamEs O’LEARY

James O'Leary
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
( Principal Executive Officer)

Diate: February 27, 2008

By: /s/  KexwerH W, CRAWFORD

Kenneth W. Crawford
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Corporafe Controller
(Principal FPinancial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons cn behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ MaRK A. ALEXANDER

Date: February 27, 2008
Mark A. Alexander
Director

/s8/ DaviD A. BRANDON

Date: February 27, 2008
David A. Brandon
Director

/s/  Patrick P. Coyne

Date: February 27, 2008
Patrick P. Coyne
Diirector

/s/  WiiiaM K, GERBER

Date: February 27, 2008
William K. Gerber
Director

/s/  Tmoray J. O’Donovan

Date: February 27, 2008
Timothy J. O’Donovan
Director

/s/  JaMes O'LEARY

Date: February 27, 2008
James O’Leary
Chairman

/s/ Taomas C. SuLLIvaN

Date: February 27, 2008
Thomas C. Sullivan
Director
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SCHEDULE II. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

Balance at Charged to Costs Balance at
Description Beginning of Period and Expenses Deductions'*’  End of Period
Altowance for doubtful accounts, deducted from
accounts receivable in the balance sheet:
2007 $1,029,000 $(50,000) $(153,000) $ 826,000
2006 $ 903,000 $235,000 $(109,000) $1,029,000
2005 : $ 738,000 $288,000 $(123,000) $ 903,000

(A) Deductions, representing uneollectible accounts written off, less recoveries of accounts receivable written off in prior years, and
reclasgifications.

Balance at Charged to Costs Balance at
Description Beginning of Period and Expenses Deductions®  End of Period
Inventory reserve account, deducted from
inventories in the balance sheet:
2007 $13,561,000 $ 595,000 $ (485,000) 413,671,000
2006 $14,889,000 $1,396,000 $(2,724,000) $13,561,000
2005 $14,519,000 $2,785,000 $(2,415,000) $14,889,000

(B) Deductions, representing disposal of physical inventories previously reserved, and reclassifications.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICES/
TEAM MEMBERS

Kaydon Corporation

315 East Eisenhower Parkway, Suite 300
Ann Arbor, Michigan 48108-3330
Telephone 734.747.7025

Fax 734.747.6565

Website: www.kaydon.com

The Company has approximately 2,125
Team meimbers.

ANNUAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at
the corporate offices of Kaydon Corporation, Third
Floor, 315 East Eisenhower Parkway, Ann Arbor,
Michigan 48108-3330 on May 6, 2008 at. 11:00 a.m,,
Eastern daylight time.

10-K ANNUAL REPORT

The Kaydon Corporation Form 10-K Annual Report
and all other Company filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission are accessible at no charge
on the Company’s website at www.kaydon.com as
soon as reasonably practicable after filing with the
Comimnission.

COMMON STOCK DATA

Kaydon Corporation’s commmon stock is listed and
traded on the New York Stock Exchange {(“NYSE™)
with the symbol KDN. As of December 31, 2007,
there were 735 holders of record of the Company’s
common stock. Pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of
the NYSE Listed Company Manual, the Company
submitted the Annual CEQ Certification to the
NYSE on May 30, 2007. Also, the Company filed
the certifications required by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act as exhibits to its Form 10-K
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2007.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP

Suite 1000, 777 Woodward Avenue
Detroit, Michigan 48226-3529

|

MOHAWK

marulacivied whth windpowss

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Shareholders may address inquiries to:

C/0 BNY Mellon Sharecwner Services

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City, New Jersey 07310-1900
Telephone 866.229.9114

E-mail address: shrrelations@bnymellon.com

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking state-
ments within the meaning of the Securities Ex-
change Act of 1934 regarding the Company’s plans,
expectations, estimates and beliefs. Forward-looking
stalements are typically identified by words such

as “believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expecls,”
“Intends,” “will,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “poten-
tial,” “projects,” “approximately” and other similar
expressions, including statements regarding pending
litigation, general economic conditions, compeltitive
dynamics and the adequacy of capital resources.
These forward-looking statements may include,
among other things, projections of the Company’s
financial performance, anticipated growth, charac-
terization of and the Company’s ability to control
contingent liabilities, and anticipated trends in

the Company’s businesses. These statements are
only predictions, based on the Company’s current,
expectation about future events. Although the
Company believes the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statemenis are reasonable, it cannot
guarantee future results, performance or achieve-
ments or that predictions or current expectations
will be accurate. These forward-looking statements
involve risks and uncertainties that could cause the
Company’s actual results, performance or achieve-
ments to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by the forward-looking statements. Kaydon
does not undertake any responsibility Lo update its
forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect
future events or circumstances except to the extent
required by applicable law.
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